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September 3, 2025 
 
Scrip Code: 975331 
BSE Limited 
Wholesale Debt Market Segment 
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 
Dalal Street, 
Mumbai- 400 001 
 
Sub:  11th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the members of Tapir Constructions Limited (the 

“Company”)  
 
Dear Sir/ Madam, 
 
Pursuant to Regulations 50(2) and 53 SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
(“SEBI LODR Regulations”), we wish to inform that 11th Annual General Meeting of the Members of Tapir 
Constructions Limited (“Company”), is scheduled to be held on Thursday, September 25, 2025 at 10:00 A.M 
(IST) (“AGM”) at the registered office of the Company situated at Office no. 202, 2nd Floor, A-18, Rama House, 
Middle Circle, Connaught Place -110001, New Delhi, to transact the businesses as set out in the notice convening 
the AGM (“AGM Notice”). 
 
The AGM Notice and Annual Report for the Financial Year (FY) 2024-25, comprising the audited financial 
statements for the FY 2024-25 are enclosed herewith and have been sent electronically, to all the 
Members/Debenture-holders of the Company, holding shares /debentures of the Company as on August 29, 2025, 
whose email addresses are registered with the Company/ Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, Kfin 
Technologies Limited/ Depository Participant(s)/ Depositories. 
 
The AGM Notice and Annual Report are also available on the Company’s website at: 
https://embassyindia.com/tcl. 
 
This is for your information and record. 
 
Thanking you. 
 
Yours faithfully, 
For Tapir Constructions Limited 
 
 
Avik Gupta 
Company Secretary 
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NOTICE OF THE 11TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
 

NOTICE is hereby given that the ELEVENTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Members 
of TAPIR CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED will be held on Thursday, the of September 25, 2025 at 
10:00 A.M. (“AGM”) at the Registered Office of the Company at Office No 202, 2nd Floor, A-18, 
Rama House, Middle Circle, Connaught Place, New Delhi - 110001, to transact the following 
businesses:  
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS: 
 
ITEM NO. 1:  
 
TO CONSIDER AND ADOPT THE AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE 
COMPANY FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025, TOGETHER WITH 
THE REPORTS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS THEREON 
 
To receive, consider and adopt the audited standalone financial statements of the Company for the 
financial year ended March 31, 2025, together with the Reports of the Board and Auditors thereon. 
 
ITEM NO. 2:  
 
RE-APPOINTMENT OF MR. ABHISHEK RAJNINATH SURVE (DIN: 10619417), WHOLE 
TIME DIRECTOR, WHO RETIRES BY ROTATION AND BEING ELIGIBLE, HAS 
OFFERED HIMSELF FOR RE-APPOINTMENT 
 
To appoint a director in place of Mr. Abhishek Rajninath Surve (DIN: 10619417), Whole Time 
Director, who retires by rotation and being eligible, has offered himself for reappointment. 
 
 
 
 

By Order of the Board of Directors  
For Tapir Constructions Limited 

 
 

Sd/- 
Avik Gupta 

Place: New Delhi                                                                                                        Company Secretary 
Date: August 11, 2025                                                                                  (Membership No. A67421) 
  



 

NOTES: 
 

1) The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, in respect of the 
business as set out in the AGM Notice is annexed hereto. 

 
2) A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) is entitled to appoint 

a proxy to attend and on a poll to vote instead of himself and that a proxy need not be a member. 
The proxy form to be valid and effective should be lodged with the company at its Registered 
Office, duly completed and signed, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the AGM. 

 
3) A Proxy shall not have a right to speak at the AGM and shall not be entitled to vote except on a 

poll. 
 
4) Corporate members are requested to send a scanned copy (PDF/ JPG Format) of their Board 

Resolution/ power of attorney authorizing their representatives to attend/ participate in the AGM 
through VC/ OAVM on their behalf and to vote. The said resolution/ power of attorney shall be 
sent to the Scrutinizer by e-mail through their registered e-mail address at 
edlsecretarial@embassyindia.com. 

 
5) All documents referred to in this Notice and other statutory registers are open for inspection by the 

Members on the date of the AGM at the venue of the meeting and also at the Registered Office of 
the Company between 10:00 A.M. to 4:00 P.M. on all working days except Saturdays, Sundays 
and national holidays, from the date hereof up to the date of the AGM. 

 
6) Members desiring any information relating to the financial statement of the Company are requested 

to write to the Company at the earliest, so as to enable the Board of Directors to keep the 
information ready at the AGM. 

 
7) Road map of the location for the venue of Annual General Meeting is attached herewith as per 

secretarial Standard 2. 
 
8) Corporate Members intending to depute their authorized representatives pursuant to section 112 

and 113 of the Companies Act 2013, to attend the Meeting are requested to send to the Company 
a certified true copy of the Board Resolution at edlsecretarial@embassyindia.com with a 
authorizing a representative to attend and vote at the Meeting on their behalf. 

 
9) In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in order of names 

will be entitled to vote. 
 
10) Kfin Technologies Limited, having its Registered Office at Selenium, Tower B, Plot No- 31 & 32, 

Financial District, Nanakramguda, Serili, ngampally, Rangareddi, Hyderabad, Telangana, India, 
500032 is the Registrar & Transfer Agent (RTA) of the Company. 
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FORM NO. MGT 11 
PROXY FORM 

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

 
CIN: U70200DL2014PLC267441 
Name of the Company: Tapir Constructions Limited 
Registered Office: Office No 202, 2nd Floor, A-18, Rama House, Middle Circle, Connaught place, New 
Delhi – 110001 
 
Name of the Member (s): _____________________________________________________________ 
Registered address:  _________________________________________________________________ 
E-mail Id: _______________________________________________ 
Folio No. / DP ID No.___________________________ Client ID No. _________________________ 
 
I / We, being the member(s) of _________________________ Equity Shares of the above named 
Company, hereby appoint: 

 
1.  Name: __________________________________ E-mail ID:__________________________ 
Address: __________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Signature:      or failing him / her 

 
 
2.  Name: ____________________________________ E-mail ID:________________________ 
Address: __________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Signature:      or failing him / her 

 
 
3. Name: ________________________________________ E-mail ID:_________________________ 
Address: _________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Signature:       

 
as my / our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me / us and on my / our behalf at the 11th Annual 
General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Thursday, September 26, 2025 at 11:00 A.M. (IST) 
at the registered office of the Company at Office No 202, 2nd Floor, A-18, Rama House, Middle Circle, 
Connaught. Place, New Delhi - 110001, and at any adjournment thereof, in respect of such resolutions 
set out in the Notice convening the meeting, as are indicated below: 
 
 

Resolution No.           Brief Details of the Resolutions 
    ORDINARY BUSINESS 

1.  To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company 
as at March 31, 2025, together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and 
Auditors thereon. 

2.  To appoint a director in place of Mr. Abhishek Rajninath Surve (DIN: 

 

 

 



 

10619417), Whole Time Director, who retires by rotation and being eligible, 
has offered himself for reappointment. 

 
 
Signed this --------, 2025  
 
 
 
Signature of Shareholder: ______________________ 
 
 
Signature of Proxy Holder(s): ____________________ 
 
Notes:  

1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the 
Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the 
Meeting. 

2. A Proxy need not be a Member of the Company.  
3. A person appointed as Proxy shall act on behalf of not more than 50 (fifty) Members and 

holding not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. 
However, a Member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying 
voting rights may appoint a single person as Proxy and such person shall not act as Proxy for 
any other person or Member. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Affix 
Revenue 
Stamp of 

Re. 1/- 
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ATTENDANCE SLIP 
 

Folio No.*:_____________________   No. of Shares: ______________________ 
DP ID: ________________________   Client ID: ___________________________ 
 
Members or their Proxies are requested to present this Slip in accordance with the Specimen 
Signatures registered with the Company, at the entrance of the Meeting Hall, for admission. 
 
 
Name of the attending Member / Proxy _____________________________________________ 
(in BLOCK LETTERS) 
 
I hereby record my presence at the 11th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 
Thursday, September 25, 2025 at 10:00 A.M. (IST) at the registered office of the Company at 
Office No 202, 2nd Floor, A-18, Rama House, Middle Circle, Connaught Place, New Delhi - 
110001. 
 
 
________________________      ____________________ 
Member’s Signatures       Proxy’s Signatures 
*Applicable for Members holding shares in Physical form. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
Road Map of the Venue of 11th Annual General Meeting 

 
 

 
 
 
https://www.google.com/maps/search/office+no+202+2nd+floor+a18+rama+house+middle+circle+c
onnaught+place+new+delhi110001+delhi+new+delhi+dl+110001/@28.6330637,77.2172097,17z/dat
a=!3m1!4b1?entry=ttu  
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BOARD’S REPORT 
 
Dear Members,  
 
The Board of Directors (“Board”) take pleasure in presenting this 11th (Eleventh) Annual Report of Tapir 
Constructions Limited (the “Company” or “TCL”), together with the audited financial statements of the 
Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2025. 
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS  
 
The summary of the audited financial statements of the Company for the FY ended March 31, 2025 are as 
under: 

    (₹ in Millions) 
Particulars For the year 

Ended March 
31, 2025 

For the year 
Ended March 
31, 2024 

Total Revenue  23.30  24.80 
Less:         
Total Expenses 206.10  96.30  
Profit / (Loss) before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax (182.80) (71.50) 
Exceptional items -  -    
Profit / (Loss) before extraordinary items and tax (182.80) (71.50) 
Extraordinary items -    -    
Profit before tax (182.80) (71.50) 
Tax expense: -  - 

Current tax (including earlier years) -  -    
Deferred tax charge/(credit) -  - 

Profit / (Loss) after tax from continuing operations (182.80) (71.50) 
Profit / (Loss) from discontinuing operations after tax -   
Profit / (Loss) from discontinuing operations before tax -    -    
Tax expense of discontinuing operations -    -    
Profit / (Loss) for the period (182.80) (1,285.90) 
Other Comprehensive Income 3.60 (0.50) 
Total Comprehensive Income for the period (179.20) (72.00) 

 
STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS 
 
Tapir Constructions Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Embassy Developments Limited (formerly 
Equinox India Developments Limited and earlier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited). The Company is engaged 
in the business, inter alia, of construction and development of real estate projects and allied activities. 
 
During the year under review, there has been no change in the nature of the business carried on by the 
Company. 
 
PERFORMANCE, PROSPECTS AND OUTLOOK 
 
During FY 2024-25, the Company has incurred Loss of INR 179.20 million as compared to the Loss of INR 
72 million earned in the previous Financial Year. 
 



TRANSFER TO RESERVES 
 
During FY 2024-25, the Company has not transferred any amount to the reserves on account of losses 
incurred during the year. 
 
 
 
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATE AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES 
 
As at March 31, 2025, your Company had no Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures.  
 
During FY 2024-25, no company became or ceased to be Subsidiary or Joint Venture or Associate of the 
Company. 
 
DIVIDEND 
 
During FY 2024-25, in view of the business requirements of the Company, the Board of Directors of the 
Company has not recommended any dividend. 
 
TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION 
FUND  
 
During FY 2024-25, since, no amount was lying unpaid/ unclaimed with the Company for a period of seven 
years or more, hence, the Company was not required to transfer any amount to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund (“IEPF”) in terms of the provisions of Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules 
framed thereunder. 
 
PUBLIC DEPOSITS 
 
During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any deposits from the public, falling within 
the ambit of Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 
2014, therefore the disclosures required in terms of Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, are 
not required to be given.  
 
SHARE CAPITAL 
 
During the year under review, there has been no change in the share capital of the Company.  
 
NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES 
 
During the year under review, the Company has raised an aggregate of INR 75 Crores by way of issuance 
and allotment of 7,500 Senior, Secured, Non-Cumulative, Redeemable, Taxable, Rated, Listed Non-
Convertible Debentures of face value INR 1,00,000/- (Rupees One Lakh Only) (“NCDs”), on a Private 
Placement basis. The Company has been regular in payments of interest thereon in terms of Disclosure 
Document. As on March 31, 2025, total outstanding NCDs amounted to INR 250 Crores. These NCDs are 
listed on WDM segment of BSE Limited. 
 
CREDIT RATING  
 
During the financial year 2024-25, the rating for NCDs instruments was revised from “IVR A - (CE)/ Rating 
watch with Negative Implications” to “IVR A - (CE)/ Stable”. The revision in ratings of the Company is 
on account of rating revision of the corporate guarantor (i.e. Holding Company) to such debt facilities. The 
credit rating agency, however, took note of the continuity of the comfort from support from Diversified 
Group with experienced management team, available Land Bank and strategic location of the project of the 
Company. 
 



The company is in a stable position to serve its debt needs and the management is committed towards 
prepayment of its outstanding NCDs in an accelerated manner, if needed. 
 
DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP) 
 
As on March 31, 2025, the composition of the Board is in compliance with the provisions of Companies Act, 
2013 read with the rules made thereunder. The details of Directors and KMP are as follows: 
 

1. Mr. Abhishek Rajninath Surve (DIN: 10619417), Whole-time Director, designated as Key 
Managerial Personnel. 

2. Mr. Uday Shyamnarayan Dubey (DIN: 10166767), Non-Executive Director. 
3. Mr. Amit Roshan Bhagat (DIN: 10163776), Non-Executive Director 
4. Mr. Yatharth, Company Secretary, designated as Key Managerial Personnel. 

 
During the FY 2024-25, the following changes were occurred in the composition of Board of Directors/ 
KMPs of your Company: 
 

a) Appointment of Mr. Abhishek Rajninath Surve (DIN: 10619417), as Whole-time Director 
(Additional) and Key Managerial Personnel, designated as Whole-time Director of the Company 
w.e.f. July 10, 2024 who was regularized as Director by shareholders at their Annual General 
Meeting held in the year 2024. 
 

b) Appointment of Mr. Yatharth, Company Secretary, designated as Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company w.e.f. January 09, 2025.  

 
c) Resignation of Mr. Sameer Khanna (DIN: 10162281), as Whole-time Director, designated as Key 

Managerial Personnel w.e.f. July 10, 2024. 
 

d) Resignation of Ms. Vartika Jain, Company Secretary, designated as Key Managerial of the 
Company w.e.f. January 09, 2025. 

 
Subsequent to the closure of Financial Year, Mr. Yatharth resigned from the position of Company Secretary 
w.e.f.  June 09, 2025 and Mr. Avik Gupta was appointed in her place as the Company Secretary w.e.f. June 
09, 2025. 
 
Further, in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and in terms of the Articles of 
Association of the Company, Mr. Abhishek Rajninath Surve is liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing 
AGM of the Company and being eligible has offered himself for reappointment. 
 
The required details of director(s) seeking approval for appointment/re-appointment at the ensuing AGM of 
the Company, including nature of expertise in specific functional areas and names of the Companies in which 
they hold Directorship and other details, as stipulated in applicable Secretarial Standards, are provided in the 
Notice of AGM. 
 
None of the Directors of your Company is disqualified to hold office in terms of the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013, read with relevant rules framed thereunder and other laws for the time being in force. 
 
BOARD MEETINGS 
 
During FY 2024-25, the Board of Directors of the Company met twelve times. The intervening gap between 
these meetings was within the period prescribed by the Companies Act 2013 read with Secretarial Standard-
1. The details of such meetings are given in Annual Return i.e. form MGT-7. 
 
PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL 
DIRECTORS 



 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made thereunder, 
your company is not required to carry out the performance evaluation of Board, its Committees and 
Individual Directors. 
 
POLICY ON APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS AND THEIR REMUNERATION 
 
The provisions of section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made thereunder are not 
applicable to your Company. Hence, it is not required to formulate the policy on Appointment of Directors 
and their Remuneration and disclosure of salient features thereof in this report. 
 
AUDITORS 
 
(a)  Statutory Auditors 

 
M/s Raj Girikshit & Associates (Firm Registration No. 022280N), the Statutory Auditors of the 
Company were appointed by the members at their Annual General Meeting (AGM), held in the year 
2024, for a period of five years i.e. until the conclusion of the AGM, to be held in the year 2029.  
 
The Auditors’ Report, issued by the Statutory Auditors, on the audited financial statements of the 
Company for the financial year 2024-25, does not contain any qualification, reservation, adverse remark 
or disclaimer and is self-explanatory & therefore does not call for any further explanation. No fraud has 
been reported by the Auditors of the Company in terms of the provisions of Section 143(12) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, and Rules framed thereunder. 
 

(b) Secretarial Auditors & Secretarial Audit Report 
 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made 
thereunder, the Company had appointed M/s S. Khandelwal & Co., Company Secretaries, a firm of 
Company Secretaries in practice as its Secretarial Auditors, to conduct the secretarial audit of the 
Company for the financial year 2024-25. 
 
The Company has provided all assistance, facilities, documents, records and clarifications etc. to the 
Secretarial Auditors for conducting their audit.  
 
The Secretarial Audit Report, for the financial year 2024-25, is annexed as “Annexure I” and forms 
part of this Report. The report does not contain any qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks and 
is self-explanatory & therefore, does not call for any further explanations. 

 
(c)  Internal Auditors 

 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made 
thereunder, the Company has appointed M/s R N Marwah & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm 
Registration No. 001211N/N500019) as an Internal Auditors for the Financial Year 2024-25. 

 
(d) Cost Auditors & Cost Auditors Report 

 
The requirement of maintenance of cost records, as specified by the Central Government under sub-
section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with applicable Rules framed thereunder, 
is not applicable on the Company, and accordingly, such records have not been made and maintained 
by the Company 
 

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 
 
To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained by 
them, your Directors, in terms of Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, hereby state and confirm that: 
 



a) in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025, the 
applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to 
material departures, if any; 
  

b) such accounting policies as mentioned in the Notes to the Financial Statements have been selected 
and applied consistently and judgments and estimates have been made that are reasonable and 
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company, as at March 31, 
2025 and the profit and loss of the Company for the year ended on that date; 
 

c) proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the 
company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

 
d) the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis; 

 
e) proper internal financial controls are in place and such financial controls are adequate and are 

operating effectively; and 
 

f) proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws are in place and are 
adequate and operating effectively. 

 
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 
 
The requirement to disclose particulars of Employees/ Managerial Remuneration Details pursuant to 
Sections 134(3) and 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is not applicable to the Company. 
 
PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS 
 
The particulars of loans, guarantees or securities and investments covered under the provisions of Section 
186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are given in the financial statements of the Company for FY 2024-25. 
 
Further, during the FY 2024-25, in terms of the provisions of Section 186(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, 
the Company did not make any investments through more than two layers of investment companies. 
 
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
During the year, no materially significant related party transaction was entered into by the Company with its 
Related Party, Promoters, Key Management Personnel or other designated persons which may have potential 
conflict with the interest of the Company at large. All the related party transactions entered into by the 
Company, during the financial year, were in its ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis. 
Hence the disclosure of information in the Form AOC-2 is not applicable. 
 
Further, your Directors wish to draw the attention of the members to Notes to the Financial Statements which 
sets out detailed disclosures on Related Party Transactions. 
 
WEB LINK OF ANNUAL RETURN 
 
Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), the Annual Return 
as on March 31, 2025 is available on the Company’s website on https://embassyindia.com/sylvanus/.  
 
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 
 
The Company has an elaborate system of internal controls commensurate with the size, scale and complexity 
of its operations; it also covers areas like financial reporting, fraud control, compliance with applicable laws 
and regulations etc. Regular internal audits are conducted to check and to ensure that responsibilities are 
discharged effectively. 



 
MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL 
POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE 
FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE 
AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT 
 
There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company, occurred 
between the date of end of the financial year of the Company i.e. March 31, 2025 till the date of this Report. 
 
Further, no significant and material orders were passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals, impacting 
the going concern status and Company’s operations in future. 
 
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS AND OUTGO 
 
The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo, 
is as under: 
 
A. Conservation of Energy  
 
The Company uses energy for its office equipment such as computers, lighting and utilities at its work 
premises. As an ongoing process the following measures are undertaken to conserve energy: 
 
a)  Implementation of viable energy saving proposals. 
b)  Installation of automatic power controllers to save maximum charges and energy. 
c)  Awareness and training sessions, at regular intervals, to concerned operational personnel on 

opportunities of energy conservation and their benefits. 
 
B. Technology Absorption 
 
The Company is investing in cutting edge technologies to upgrade its infrastructure set up and innovative 
technical solutions, thereby increasing customer delight & employee efficiency. Next Generation Business 
Intelligence & analytics tool have been implemented to ensure that while data continues to grow, decision 
makers gets answers faster than ever for timely & critical level decision making. The Company has 
implemented best of the breed applications to manage and automate its business processes to achieve higher 
efficiency, data integrity and data security. It has helped it in implementing best business practices and 
shorter time to market new schemes, products and customer services.  The Company has taken major 
initiatives for improved employee experience and efficient Human resource management, by implementing 
world class HRMS application and empowering them by providing mobile platform to manage their work 
while on the go.  
 
The Company’s investment in technology has improved customer services, reduced operational cost and 
development of new business opportunities.  
 
C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo 
 
There were no foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the year under review. 
 
BUSINESS RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has formulated robust 
business Risk Management framework to identify and evaluate business risks and opportunities. This 
framework seeks to create transparency, minimize adverse impact on its business objectives and enhance its 
competitive advantage. It defines the risk management approach across the Company including the 
documentation and reporting. At present, the Company has not identified any element of risk which may 
threaten its existence.  
 



COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of sections 177(1) and 178(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 6 of 
the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, and Rule 4(2) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended, the Company, being a wholly owned 
subsidiary, is exempt from the requirement of constituting Audit Committee of the Board. 
 
 
 
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 
 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the applicable Rules 
made thereunder, the Company was not required to contribute any amount towards CSR activities during the 
financial year 2024–25, as it had average net losses during the immediately preceding three financial years. 
However, the Company constantly strives to ensure strong corporate culture which emphasizes on 
integrating CSR values with business objectives. 
 
VIGIL MECHANISM/ WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 
 
The Company is committed to adhere to the highest standards of ethical, moral and legal conduct of its 
business operations.  
 
To maintain these standards, Embassy Developments Limited, the ultimate Holding Company has, at group 
level (including all the subsidiaries companies) implemented the Whistle Blower Policy (“the Policy”), to 
provide an avenue for employees to report matters without the risk of subsequent victimization, 
discrimination or disadvantage. The Policy applies to all the employees working for the Group. Pursuant to 
the Policy, the whistle blowers can raise concerns relating to matters such as fraud, bribery, corruption, 
employee misconduct, illegality, misappropriation of Company’s funds/assets etc. A whistle-blowing or 
reporting mechanism, as set out in the Policy, invites all employees to act responsibly to uphold the 
reputation of the Group. The Policy aims to ensure that serious concerns are properly raised and addressed 
and are recognized as an enabling factor in administering good governance practices. 
 
NUMBER OF CASES FILED, IF ANY, AND THEIR DISPOSAL UNDER SECTION 22 OF THE 
SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND 
REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 
 
The Company has zero tolerance towards sexual harassment at the workplace and has adopted a policy on 
prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at workplace, in line with the provisions of the 
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules 
thereunder. 
 
Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013:  
 

i. number of complaints of sexual harassment received in FY 2024-25- NIL 
ii. number of complaints disposed off during FY 2024-25- NIL 
iii. number of cases pending for more than ninety days - NIL 
 

The Company has an Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) in accordance with the Sexual Harassment of 
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. The Company confirms 
compliance with the provisions relating to the constitution and functioning of the Internal Complaints 
Committee under the aforementioned Act.  
 
COMPLIANCE OF MATERNITY BENEFIT ACT, 1961  
 
The Company hereby affirms its unwavering commitment to ensuring full compliance with the provisions 
of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961. In line with the said act, the Company guarantees that all eligible female 



employees are provided with the entitled maternity benefits, including paid maternity leave and related 
welfare provisions. The Company has implemented such measures that prioritize the health, well-being, and 
dignity of women employees, reinforcing its dedication to fostering an inclusive and supportive work 
environment. 
 
DETAILS OF PROCEEDINGS UNDER INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPCY CODE, 2016 
 
During the year under review, no applications were made, or case was pending under the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 
 
DETAILS OF VALUATION DONE WITH RESPECT TO LOANS TAKEN FROM BANKS OR 
FINANCIAL INSTITUTION 
 
During the year under review, there was no one time settlement made in respect of loan taken from Banks 
or Financial Institutions. 
 
COMPLIANCE OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 
 
The Board of Directors state that the Company has complied with the provisions of applicable Secretarial 
Standards (SS-1 and SS-2) issued by Institute of Company Secretaries of India, relating to Meetings of the 
Board, its Committee and the General Meetings during the period under review. 
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Your Company has been able to operate efficiently because of the culture of professionalism, creativity, 
integrity and continuous improvement in all functional areas and the efficient utilization of all its resources 
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Place:- New Delhi 
Date:-  August 11, 2025 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Tapir Constructions Limited 
 
 
  Sd/-                                                     Sd/- 
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Whole Time Director                         Director 
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Annexure-IS. Khandelwal & Co 
Company Secretaries • 

Regd. Off. : E7/12, LGF, 
Malviya Nagar, 

New Oelhl • 110017 
Email : sanJay@csskc.in 

Board : 011-41552938 
011 -35980267 

Mobile : 9899516433 

.....___ 

OS 
Date : .. ; .?:J~:J,~ ..... . 

FORM M H-3 ... r J I ' ' MA HCII , 202:, 
SECRETARlAI. AUDlT IU'POlff FOil T IIF FINANCIA i YFAH ENDED O ,, · , ·I 
Ip ._ , , ' , ' ' , (' ·111ic-. ( /\rr11111I11I-:nI .111 , 

u, su:111t tn Section 201I( I) or the Compn11ics /\ct. :w f .1 and f{uk 9 ol I'1c ornr, 
Remuncr:uion ol' Manageria l Personnel ) Ruk,;. 201 •11 

To 
The Members 
Tnpir Constructions L imited 
Orticc No 202. 2nd rloor, A-1 8. Rama House, 
Middle Circle. Connaught Place. New Delhi- II000 I 

\Ve have conducted the secretarial audit or the complinnce or applicable statutor) rro" 1~101h "
nd iii.: 

adherence to good corporate practices by Tapir Constru ctions Limited (hen.:inalkr. c:ilkd ill,· 
'Company') for the financial year ended March 31. 2025. Secretarial Aud it \\HS conc!uctL·d 111 :i 111 ;ini,vr 
that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corpora te condrn:h :-.t:Itut11r~ '-' 1111 Jl l.·1'"'-' 

e:-..pressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of the Company·s books, papers, minute books. lonns and rL'lllrlh Ii k:d and 
other records maintained by the Company nnd also the information provided by the Com pan:,. its olfo.:er~. 
agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit. We hen:b: r.:purl 1lia1 i11 uur 
opinion. the Company has. during the audit period coveri ng the financial year entkd un i'vlard, ~I. ~11> 

complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Crnnpan) ha:; proper I30:ird­
processcs and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to 1hc reportin~ 
made hereinafter: 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns fi led and other records maintained 
by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025, according to the provision~ 01· the 
following. as amended from time to time. and to the extent applicable: 

i. The Companies Act. :w 13 (the /\ct) and the ruks 111:1tk th1.·re1111,kr: 

11. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) /\ct, 1956 (' SCR;\ ·) and the ruk~ nwdc tl11.·r1.·u11d1.·r. j '\\,1 

Applicable to the Company during the period under review] 

11 1. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-la,, s rr:imed thcreuntkr_ 

i v. Foreign E.xdrnngc Management /\t.:t. I 999 :ind the rules and r.:~11l:11io11, 111ad1.• IliL·1\·u,hkr '" ilw 
cxtent of Foreign Direct Investment. Overseas Direct lmestnh:111 and L.,tcrn,11 l ummet\:i:il 
Oorrowings. [Not Applicable to the Company during thl.! period unck r rl.!Vk\\ I 

v. The following Regul at ions and Guidelines prescribed under the Securitks and hd1:11h!l' Bu.ml 111 
India Act. 1992 ('SE111 Act'):- ~ 

a. Thc Sceuri tics and l::--d1a11ge lfoard ut' India 1~uh,ta111ial \1.·qui,iti1,II 111• :--li.ll1.', .iii.I 
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 including the prov isions "ith rc"ard tll di~•·l•i · ti,·, .. , 1 , • • ~ J '- , :> l :> , Ill 
mnintcnnncl.! ?' records. required un~kr the s:ud Regulatinns. I N\ll ..\ppl ir:ihk t,, th1.' 
Company during the pcnod under review I 
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. . . f I .· I ·r Trc1di1w) l{q.:ulnti<•th. 
I>. The Sccmitics nnd Exclrnngc Board or India (l'roh ibition ° nsit c . . . I • 

'>() I c • I ·riod umk:r n:v1cw - ·'· I Not /\pplicnblc to the Co111pa11y dunng t 1c re 
r (' · pit ·il ·111d fJi -,clo..,uri.: 

<'. The Securities nnd l :.,cllnngc Bun rd ol' l1lll ia ( h ~ul.' 0 
.i ' 1' .• )t'. tllL: A udit 

Require111t..:11ts) l~t..:gu lnt ions, 20 18. JNut /\pp licablt to tl1c Cu1nrH
11
Y c u, ,, __ 

period under review] 

., . . . 1 1 • ·t' g of Non-Convcrtihk 
d. I he Sccunt,cs nnd Exchange Board of India (Issue am ,,s 111 

C. 

r. 

Securities) Regulations, 2021. 

1·1 S · · · ' I 13 I 1· 1 ,1(>\'Cl' f'knclit .., .iml <.;\\cat 1c ~ ccunt1cs and Excha11!-;C Board or l11cl1a (S rnrc nsc( J) I , . . , .• 1 
Equity) Regulations, 2021·: !Not Applicable to the Company during the /\udit p1.: i IOl 

under review] 

The Securities and Exchange Board or India (Registrars to an h~llL' :11 1~1 '-)il, lr L· I :_- i : '., 

/\gents) Regulations. 1993 regarclinl!. the Companies /\cl. 201> and 1.k ,11111~· \\ltl i L· l
1
L·

111 11
' 

the extent of the securities i;succl.~INot /\pplicc1bk tu 1l1e Cu111pa11~ dt1r11 1~1 
tli \' \ 1

1d 11 

period under reviewj 

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting o f Equi ty Shar<2'>) R-:~ul:iti111h . 
2021 [Not Applicable to the Company during the /\udit pi.:riod u11Lk 1· f'L'\.i-:" I , 11 1,I 

h. The Securities mid Exchange Bonrcl oi' Incl in ( nuybad nl' Sccuritic:-. l l{q '.u l:1t i111h. 2tl I K 
[Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit period under review I: 

1. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

v1. Other laws applicable spec i fica lly to the Company namely: 

• 
• 

• 
• 

• 

Taxation Laws 
Labour and Social Security Laws - such as Employees State Insurance 1\ct. J lJ 18: l1a: 111l·11t 

of Gratuity Act, I 972; Contract Labour (Regulation and Abol ition) Act. I 070: '\ l ;lll'rnil \ 

Benefit Act, 1961, The Equal Remuneration Act 1976: Employees Pren id e111 I u1 1-!-.. . ,11:! 

Miscel laneous Provisions Act, 1952. 
JT Related Laws - Information Technology /\ct. ::woo . 
Real F.state L:1ws- I lousing lfoard /\ct. I 065. Transkr or l'>r1l\k'l'l.'- .\ct. I XX~. n1 1i l ,l i11~: , 111,1 
Other Construction Workers (Regulation or l:mployrnc1ll & CL>nditium, of Sen is:L' 1 ,\L't. ·1 q,J(i. 

Miscellaneous Lnws - The Electricity Act, '.2003; Sexual Harassrnc1H 0 1· \\ orn('n :H 

Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. 

We have also examined compliancc .with the applicable clauses of' Secretarial Standards iss u~.-d b, th, 
!nstilule or Company Secretaries or India w.r.t. Meetings of the 11oard or Directors (SS _ I) anti G~nen~I 
Meeting (SS 2). 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the 111·m isintb ,ll' the \~·t. Ru l..- ... 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. 

We rurther report that during t ile /\udit period: 
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❖ lhc Board or Directors or tile Company is dul) Lllllililull'd \\ itli p l'Clj>L'I h,d,llil l' c,J I \\.'UIII \\ 

Directors. Non-1-::xccutivc l)irl'cturs. The chnngc.:s i 11 till· c..:011 qw,i 1in11 ol' 1l1l' 11,,anl 1.i I Jirn 111" 111.11 
tool-. place during the period 1111tkr n:,·k11. 11crc carried 11111 in c.:u11 1pli:111n: 111111111"· pn, .1,1,11h "' 1lr. 

Act. 

❖ In compliance with applicable provisions or lhc Companies Acl. 2(J 13 and ruk~ nw<k il1l'l'l'U11tk1 .11 1, 1 
Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute or Company Sccrctnri cs or lndi:1. mil'qll:lll' n11r1t·l·~ ·, .r 
g iven to all directors to schcclulc the Board Meetings. and the ngc.:11d11 1111<1 tkU1ikd 11111\.'~ ,111 ,1s11d.i 
\\'C.:n: sent. in compliance with the provisions ol'tlic.: /\ct reml II ilh St:c:rl·larial \1andi1nl- I 

❖ A S) stem c:--ists for seeking and obtaining rurthcr information and clari licmions on the agenda 11c1m 
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

❖ A ll decisions of the Board and Committees were carried with requisi te majori ty. 

❖ As per the records. the Company has duly lilcd all the returns. docu,m:nts and re~ol ution\. form~. a~ 
were required to be 1ikd with the Registrnr or Co111paniL'S and other aut lwri til·~ and all 1hl' li>r111ali1iL·~ 
relating to the same arc in compliance with the Act. 

We have not e:-.:amined Compliance wi th respect lo applicahle linancial la11 '.-.. Iii-..: dir,.-..-1 ,111,I i11,l11,·, 1 ;," 
laws. since the same have been subject 10 review by statutor: li11;1m:ial audi1 anti 111'1..-1 dv~•·•n.i 
professionals. 

We fu1ther report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Compan) comm.:n:,uratc: 11 i th tilt: 
size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable la11:-,. ruk:-.. 
regulations and guidelines. The Company has introduced compliance alert system for applicahilit: 1>f .111 
applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

We ti.111her report that during the audit period: 

J. During the year under review, the Company has raised an aggregate of l NR 75-crorcs by way or 
issuance of 17,500 Senior Secured, N on-Cumulative, Redeemable, Taxable, Rated. Listed 
Debentures of face value INR 1,00,000/- (Rupees One Lakh Only) ("NCDs"). on a Pri1:11.: 
Placement basis. The Company has been regular in payment of interest thereon in tl'rnh of 
Disclosure Document. As on March 3 1. 202:'i. total uutstnndin:! , Cl), ;11111>11111'-·d 1,1 1'\ I{ ',11 

Crorcs. These NCDs are listed on WD M Sl.!gml.'nr ol' 13SI·. l.imi ll·tl. 

For S. Khandcl 
(Com pany Sc 

• J,l )' I( 

FCS No.:. 
C P No.: 6128 
UOJN: F005945G000838348 
Phtcc: New Delhi 
Dnte: 22/07/2025 
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Note: This report is 10 be rend with our letlcr or even date which i<; ;innexccl a,; ··ANN EXUru: A •• ,ind 
rorms :111 imcgral part or this report. 

Anncxurc A 

To 
The Members. 
Tapir C'onstrul·tions I ,imitcd 
Onicc I t) 202. 2nd Floor. /\-1 S. Rama I low,c. 
Middle Circle, Connaught Place, New Delhi- I I 000 I 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

( 1) 

(3) 

(4) 

(5) 

(6) 

(7) 

Maintenance of secretarial record is the n:sponsibility of the 111,111ageIm:11 l or tl1..: ( ·<,mp,11 1~ . ( lt11 

responsibility is 10 express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our m1di1. 

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done 
on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We bel ievc that the 
processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion. 

We have not verilied the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and f1ooks 01· 
Accounts of the Company. 

Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about th.: ..:oinpli,111..: ~· ,,1 

la,-vs, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other appl il:t1bk l:1,, .~. ruk~. :-..:~ul.:th111,. 
standards is the responsibility of management. Our e:-;amination ,,as limit..:d lo th..: ,,:ri li..:.11i,n1 , 11 

procedures on test basis. 

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the ( ·omp:111~ 11\ir ,11 
the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management as conduc11:d th.: a l'i"air, u1· tll ... • 

Company. 

The maximum liability of our firm under the secretarial audit in respect of th..: aggr.:gat..: 01' :111 

claims shall not exceed the fee charged by us. 

For S. Khandclwa 
(Company Seer 

I)., .. ,_ II."" 11 
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RAJ GIRIKSHIT & ASSOCIATES 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Members of Tapir Constructions Llmited 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

RAJ GIRIKSHIT 
& ASSOCIATES 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Tapir Constructions Limited ("the 
Company"), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2025, and the Statement of Profit 
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Eguity and 
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanawry information 
(hereinafter referred to as "the financial statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our infonnation and according to the explanations given to us, 
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies ..--\ct, 2013 
('Act') in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS') specified 
under section 133 of the Act, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2025, its loss 
and total comprehensive income, changes in eguity and its cash flows for the year ended on rhat 
date. 

Basis for Opinion 

\Yle conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing ('SA's) specified under 
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of tbe Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of 
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical 
requixements that are relevant to our audit of the fimi.ncial statements under the provisions of the 
Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters arc those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of mosL significance 
in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. 11,ese matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 
opimon thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

Head Office : Second Office : 

19 Third Floor, K. K. Business Center, 
Veer s'avarkar Block, Shakarpur, Delhi-110092 

112A, First Floor, 19, Surya Kiran Building, 
KG Marg, New Delhi-110001 

Telefax: 011-43045353 
Email : info@rajgirikshit.com 



\Ve have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be 
communicated in our report. 

Key Audit Matter 

Assessing the carrying value of inventory 
The accounting policies for Inventories ai:e set 
out in Note 5.8 to the financial statements. 
Inventories of the Company comprise of real 
estate properties (including land) are disclosed 
under Note 9. 

Impairment assessment of inventory 1s 
considered as a significant risk as there is a risk 
that recoverability of the carrying value of the 
inventory could not be eslablished, and potential 
impairment charge might be required to be 
recorded m the financial statements. 
Management's assessment of the recoverable 
amoums is a judgmental process which requires 
the estimation of the net realisable value, which 
takes into account the valuations of Lhe 
properties held and cash flow projections of real 
estate properties under development. 

Due to their materiality in the context of the 
fitrnncial statements as a whole and significant 
degree of judgement and subjectivity involved in 
the estimates and key assumptions used in 
determining the cash flows used m the 
impairment evaluation, this is considered to be 
the area which had the greatest effect on ow: 
overall audit strategy and allocation of resources 
in planning and completing our audit. 

Audit Response 

Our procedures in relation ro the valuation of 111ventory held 
by the included, b ut oat limited to the followings: 

• Obtained an understanding of the management 
process for identification of possible impairment 
indicators and process performed by the management 
for impairment testing and the management process of 
determining the Net Realisable Value (NRV); 

• Enquired of the management and inspected the 
internal controls related to inventory valuation along 
wilh the process followed to recover/ adjust these and 
assessed whether impairment is required; 

• All rnacccial properties under development as at 31 
March 2025 were discussed on case-to-case basis with 
the management for their plan of recovery/ adjustment; 

• For real estate properties under development, obtained 
and assessed the management evaluation of the NRV. 
\Ve also assessed the managemem's valuation 
methodology applied in determining the recoverable 
amount and tested the underlying assumptions used by 
the management in arriving at those projections; 

• \Ve challenged the management on the underlying 
assumptions used for the cash flow projections, 
considering evidence available to support these 
assumptions and our understanding of the busmess; 

• \Xt'here the management uwolved specialists to perform 
valuations, evaluated the objectivity and independence 
of those specialists; 

• For land parcels, obtained and verified the valuation of 
land parcels as per the government prescribed circle 
rates, wherever necessary; 

• Tested the arithmetical accuracy of the cash flow 
projections; and 

We assessed the appropriateness and adequacy of che 
disclosures made by the management for the impairment 
losses recognized in accordance with applicable accounting 
standards. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. Other information 

does not include the financial statements and our auditor\; report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not 

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 



In connection with our audit of the financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the o ther 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is macerially inconsistem 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of 
this auditor's report, we conclude that there is a material misstMemcnt of this other information, 
we are required to report that fact. Reporting under this section is not applicable as no other 
information is obtained at the date of this auditor's report. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Company's Board of 
Directors. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true 
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, 
changes in equity and aish flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, including the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act. This 
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the asset$ of the Company and for preventing and 
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and arc 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or errot. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, macrers related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting 
process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance abour whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether dL1e 
to fraud o r error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence chat is sufficient and appropriate co provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
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not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, 
or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in tbe circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we 
are also responsible for e::-..-pressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal 
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of sL1ch controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a maceriru uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements 
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether tbe financial statements represent t:he underlying transaccions 
and events in a manner Lhat achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of rnjsstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of 
the financiaJ statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative 
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and 
(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements. 

We communica te with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope aod timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significanc 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
rdationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, rehted safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those chaxged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Fin::mcial Statements of the current 
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report 
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because 
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication. 

Other Matter 

The audit of financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 was carried out and reporLed 
by Agarwal Prakash & Co. vide their unmorufied audit report dated 25 April 2024, whose audit 
report has been furnished to us by the management of the Company. Our opinion is not 
modified in respect of this matter. 

• * q ~ 
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the 
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in 
the 'Annexure A', a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, co the 
extent applicable. 

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report, co the extent applicable, 
that: 
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 
so far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the 
paragraph h(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014; 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive 
Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt \'.v1th by this 
Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under 
Section 133 of the Act. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record 
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2025 from 
being appointed as a director in terms of Sect.ion 164(2) of the Act. 

(~ The modifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connecced 
therewith are as stated in the paragraph (b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) of the 
A.ct and paragraph h(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014; 

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
'Annexure B'. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the :tdequacy and operating 
effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls over linancial reporting; 

(h) With respect to the other matters ro be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of 
our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its 
financial srntemenr as at 31 March 2025- Refer note-45 to the financial statements 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2025. 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be t.nrnsferred to the T nvestor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2025. 

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, co the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 
(which are material either individually or in the aggregiuc) have been advanced or loaned or 
invested (either from borrowed fun<ls or share premium or an}' other sources or kind of 
funds) by the Company to or in any ocher person or entiry, including foreign entity 



("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that 
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or 
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate 
Beneficiaries") or provide :my guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries; 

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the 
Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity ("Funding Parties"), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, 
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in 
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11 (e), as provided under (a) and (b) 
above, contain any material misstatement. 

v. The Company has not declared and paid dividend during the year. 

vi. As stated in note 49 to the financial statements and based on our examination which 
included test checks, the Company, in respect of financial year commencing on 1 April 
2024, has used an accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account which have 
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and d1e same has been operated 
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the softwares except that, the 
audit trail logs were not enabled for changes made using privileged access rights for direct 
data changes at the database level. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come 
across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with other than the consequential 
impact of the exception given above. Furthermore, the audit trail has been preserved by 
the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention except chat the audit 
trail at the database level for the Company has not been preserved in the accounting 
software for the period 1 April 2023 to 31 March 2024. 

(i) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the 
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 

us, the Company did not pay any remuneration to its Di.rectors during the year. 

For Raj Girikshit & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Registr ·on No.: 0 

Gaurav Goya 
Partner 

Membership No.: 518 8 

UDIN: '2.551g 6"q 8 e, 
Place: Delhi 
Date: 29 May 2025 



Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report 

With reference to the Annexw:e A referred to in the Independent Auditor's Report m the 
members of the Company on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025, based 
on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the 
financiaJ statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and 
explanations given to us and the books of account and other records examined by us in the 
normal course of audil, and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we report that: 

(i) In respect of the Company's Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets: 
(a)(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, 

including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and 
Equipment. 

(B) The Company has no intangible assets. Accordingly, clause 3(i)(a)(B) of the 
order is not applicable. 

(b) According to the information, explanation llnd representation provided to us and 
based on verification carried out by us, the Company's management carries out the 
physical verification of Property, Plant and Equipment once .in a year. In our 
opinion, the frequency of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size 
of the Company and nature of its assets. As explained to us, no material 
discrepancies were noticed by the management on such physical verification. 

(c) According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and 
based on verification carried out by us, during the year, the Company does not have 
any immovable property. Accordingly, clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable ro 
the Company. 

(d) According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and 
based on verification cari:ied our by us, the Company has not revalued its Property, 
Plant and Equipment (including Right-of-use assets) or intangible assets during the 
year. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable ro 
the Company. 

(e) According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and 
based on verification carried out by us, there are no proceedings initiated or pending 
against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of 
Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder. 

(ii) (a) The inventories held by the Company comprise stocks of units in completed 
projects and work in progress of the projects under development. Having regard co 
the nature of the Invent01y, the management has conducted physical verification of 
inventory by way of verification of title deeds, site visits conducted, and continuous 
project progress monitoring by competent persons at reasonable intervals during the 
year, and no material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification. 

(b) According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and 
based on verification carried out by us, the company has not been sanctioned 
working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or 
financial institutions on the basis of security of current assccs. Accordingly, clause 
3(ii)(b) of the Order is noi applicable. 



(iii) According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and 
based on verification carried out by us, during the yeat, the company has not made 
any investments in or has not provided any guarantee or security or has not granted 
any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, 
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, clause 3 (iii) 
(a) to (f) of the O rder is not applicable. 

(iv) According to the information, explanation and representation provided to u:; and 
based on verification carried out by us, the Company has complied with the 
provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the 
loans and investments made, and guarantees and security provided by it, as 
applicable. 

(v) According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and 
based on verification carried out by us, the Company has not accepted deposits or 
deemed deposits to which the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the 
provisions of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules framed there under, are 
applicable. Accordingly, reporting under para 3(v) is not applicable. 

(vi) To the best of our knowledge and as explained to us, the Central Government has 
not specified the m,-untenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 
of the Act, in respect of Company's products/services. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of 
the Order is not applicable. 

(vii) (a) In our opinion, and according to the information and explami.tions given to us, 
the Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and 
Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, 
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and services tax, 
cess and ocher material statutory dues, as applicable, have generally been regularly 
deposited to che appropriate authorities. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in 
respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six 
months from the date they became payable. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the 
Company examined by us, the dues outstanding of Income tax, Sales tax, Service tax, 
Duey of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value added tax, Cess on account of any dispulc, 
are as follows: 

Name of the Nature of Gross Period to whic h Forum w here 

statute dues Amount the amount dispute is pending 

(t relates 

Millions 
) 

The Central Reversal of 3.60 Balances as at Dy. Com, Div-TII, 

Goods & credit 30.06.2017 in CGST.& CE., 

Service tax Act, claimed in Trans-1 Mumbai 

2017 Trans-1 

The Central V erifica tio 0.10 July-17 to Seate Tax officer 

Goods & n of Trans- March-18 (Sachin Prahlad 

Service tax Act, 1 credit Manorc) 

2017 



(vi.ii) According to the information and explanations given co us and the records of the 
Company examined by us, there are no transactions in the books of account that has 
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessmencs 
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961 ), that has not been recorded in the 
books of account. 

(ix) (a) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information 
and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted tn the repayment of 
loans or borrowings and interest thereon payable to any banks and other lenders. 
The Company does not have any borrowings from financial institutions or 
government. Accordingly, clause 3(i..x)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 
our audit procedures, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any 
bank or financial institution or government or government authority. 

(c) r\ccording to the information and explanations given ro us and on the basis of 
our audit procedures, the Company has not obtaine<l any term loans. Accordingly, 
clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable. 

(cl) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures 
performed by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the 
company, we report that no fonds raised on short-term basis have been used for 
long-term purposes by the company. 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures 
performed by us, the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on 
account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries as defined under the 
Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable. 

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures 
performed by us, the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of 
securities held in its subsidiaries as defined under the Companies Act, 2013. 
Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(Q of the Order is not applicable. 

(x) (a) According to the information, explanation and representation provided lO us and 
bnsed on verification carried out by us, the Company has not raised moneys by way 
of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the 
year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

(b) According co the information, explanation and representation provided to us and 
based on verification carried out by us, during the year, the Company has not made 
any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible 
debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xi) (a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, 
carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and 
according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come 
across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed 
or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the 
Management. 



(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been 
filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rnle 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and up to the date of this 
report. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures 
performed by us, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the Company 
during the year. 

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

(xiii) According to the information and e:-..-planat.ions given to us, and the procedures 
performed by us, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 with respect to applicable all transactions with the related 
parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the 
financial statements as reguired by the applicable Indian accounting standards. 

(xiv) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures 
performed by us, the company has an internal audit system commensurate with the 
size and nature of its business. 

(b) The internal audit is performed as per a planned program approved by the Board 
of Directors of the Company. We have considered the reports of the Internal 
Auditor for the year under audit, issued to the Company till date. 

(xv) According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and 
based on verification carried our by us, during the year, the Company has not entered 
into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its 
directors. and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not 
applicable to the Company. 

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve 
Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable 

(b) The Company is not rcguircd to be registered under Section 45-IJ\ of the Reserve 
Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not i:tpplicable. 

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the 
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the 
Orde.r is not applicable. 

(d) According to the information and explanacions provided to us during the course 
of audit, the Group does not have any CIC. Accordingly, the requirements of clause 
3(xvi)(d) are not applicable. 

(xvii) The company has incurred cash losses of~ 177.60 millions in the current financial 
year 2024-25 and cash losses of ~ 72.90 millions during immediately preceding 
financial year. 

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the stalutory auditors of the Company during rhe 
year. Accordingly, clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable. 

""""'.J .. ~--'"'' 



(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the 
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and 
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial 
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and 
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions and subject to 

the Note - 51(d), nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that 
any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is 
not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when 
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet da te. We, however, 
state that this is not an assurance as to the fu ture viability of the Company. We 
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up co the date of the audit 
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling 
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will gee discharged by 
the Company as and when they fall due. 

(xx) The Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 with regards to Corporate Social 
Responsibility are not applicable to the company. Accordingly, clause 3(xx) of the 
Order is not applicable. 

For Raj Girikshit & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

Gau,,-•~,,v 

Partner 
Membership No.: 518 8 
UDIN: 25518e'j g SM I PPtM 58 l 1 

Place: Delhi 
Date: 29 May 2025 



Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report 

With reference to the Annexure B referred co in the Independent Auditor's Repor t to the 
members of the Company on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 of even 
date. 

Independent Auditor's report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub­
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') 

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Tapir 
Constructions Limited ('the Company') as of 31 M::irch 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the 
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintrurung internal 
financial controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements cri teria 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in 
the Guidance Note on Audit o f Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the 
"Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI"). These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of 
the Company's business, including adherence to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as reguired 
under the Act. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to eirpress an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed 
under section 143(10) of the Act, co the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and both, issued by ICAI. 
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequa te in ternal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if 
such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures co obtain audil evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial control system with reference to financial statements and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures 
selected depend on che auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference co 
financial statements. 



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to F inancial Statements 

A Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process 
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records 
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the 
assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions arc recorded as 
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in 
accordance with authorisations of mf\nagement and directors of the company; and (3) provide 
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, 
or disposition of the Comp:my's assets that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial 
Statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of 
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future 
periods arc subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference co 
financi::il statements were operating effectively as at 31 March 2025, based on the internal 
fin::incial controls with reference to fin::incial statements criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by 
ICAL 

For Raj Girikshit & Associates 

Chartered Accountants 
Finn's gistration No.: _ 

Partner 
Membership No.: 5 

UDIN: 2551869gB,''\IPA-M 5JII 
Place: Delhi 
Date: 29 May 2025 



TAPIR CONSTRUCTIONS LlMITED 

Balance Sheet a.s at 

I. ASSETS 
Non-current assets 
(•) Property, plan, •nd equipmen, 
(b) Other int:ingible asseto 
(c) Fin:iru:i21 use,. 

Other fina.n.cnl :.t.55cts 

(d) Non.currenc tax assetS. net 

Current assets 
{a) ln\'cntoric.! 
(b) Financial Asseu 

Jnvesttncntl 
Cash ~rind cash equivalents 
Other b>nk bamices 

Other fmancial useu 
(c) Other cutttl\1 assoc; 

Toto! or Assets 

Il. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity 
(a) Equity slnre c:apicil 
(b) Other C<jUU}' 

liabilities 
Non•current liibilities 
(,) F",nandal ls,bilicies 

Bonowing, 
Le:=!iabil,ty 

(b) ProVJSioos 

Current liabilities 
(•) F"inancw IL,bilicie, 

Note 

6J\ 

68 

7A 
8 

9 

10 
I I 
12 
78 
13 

14 

15A 

16A 
171\ 

Bo1-rowlng, I SB 
Lea« liability 168 
Tnde p>)-.bb 18 

•total oum:anding dues of micro e1uerprises 1-nd smnU enterprise., 
~total outsranding dues of creditors other than micro cnre.rpn£es and small enterprises 

Other fm,ncial liabilities 19 
(b) Odm cu,~enc liabilities 20 
(c) Pro01sions 17B 

To1al of Equity and Liabilirie, 

Summary of matcdal accounting policies 
Tbc sccompanrmg notes form an integnl ~ of the ruuncial St11temeou. 

This is the balance sheet tcfcrred m ln our report of even date. 

Place: Delhi 
Date: 29 M•r 202; 

Ut>1N- 2..'55 I ~69 iBM I PF\M 5 811 

AD 2moun1 in r millions, unlna ot/Jtrwlse stated 

31 Ma,eh 2025 31 March 2024 

6.40 5.00 

7.00 0.20 
33.40 31.00 
46.80 36.20 

6,040.40 4,813.00 

29.30 87.20 
30.40 9.70 
250 59.90 

10.40 0.60 
50.50 68.40 

6,163.50 5,038.80 
6,210.30 5,075.00 

0.50 0.50 
(2,268.60) G.117.SQl 
(2,268.10) (2,Jl7,00) 

2,43200 1,682.70 
1.20 0.80 

LO.SO 8.\0 
2,443.70 1,691.60 

2,006.80 1,857.80 
0.60 o.so 

17.20 '10.50 

165.30 103.00 

17.80 11.50 
3.826.80 3,516.90 

0.20 0.20 
6,034.70 5,500.40 
6,210.30 5 075.00 

For and on behaJr or the Board or Directort 

hishek Rajnin:.uh Survc 
\'<'hole-tlme direcL01· 

[DIN: 10619-117] 

Yatharth 
Company Sccrewy 

Amit Roshan Bhagat 
Director 
(Or.-1, 10163n6J 



TAPffi CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED 

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 

Revenue 
Revenue from operations 
Othet income 

T otal of Revenue 

Expenses 
Cost of revenue 

Cost incurred during the year 

(lncrease)/Decrease in real cstare properties 

Employee bencfiis e.xpense 
Finance costs 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 
Other c.,pens~ 
Total of Expenses 

Loss before tax 
Tax expense 
Current tax (including earlier years) 
Deferred tax charge/ (credit) 
Loss after tax 

Other comprchensjvc income 
A (i) hems th2.t will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

Note 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

6A&B 
26 

27 

(ii) Income t,tx relating to items thnt will not be rcclnssificd to profit or loss 

8 (i) Items that will be reclru;sified to profit or loss 
(ii) Income lax relating to items that will be reclassified 10 profit or loss 

Total other comprehensive income net of tax 

Total comprehensive income for the year 

Earnings per equity share 
Basic ~ 

Diluted~ 

28 

Summary of material accounting policies 5 

The accornpan)'ing notes form an imegral p:itt of the financial statements. 

This is the Stltement of profit and loss referted to in ouc report of even date 

Place: Delhi 
Date: 29 i\lay 2025 

vo,tJ - '2..'5.5 l 8 69 8 e,I'-\ 1 PI\M 58, 1 

1,227.-IO 

(1,227.40) 

All amouot in f' mil/ioos, unless otherwise stJltcd 
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 

2.60 
20.iO 

23.30 

108.30 

11.70 
2.20 

83.90 
206.10 

(182.80) 

(182.80) 

3.60 

3.60 

(179.20) 

(3,654.38) 
(3,654.38) 

688.90 

(688.90) 

7.90 
16.90 
24.80 

55.40 
0.10 
1.20 

39.60 
96.30 

(7L50) 

(71.S0) 

(0.50) 

(0.50) 

(72.00) 

{1,430.52) 
(1,430.52) 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors y 

~ 
Amii Roshan Bhagat ~ -

Whole-ti,,;, director Director 
[DIN: 10619417) [DIN: 10163776] 

Yatbarth 
Co111pany Secretary 



TAPIR CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED 

A. Cash now {rom opcr,ui.ng activiti.c,,: 

Lo:s.s bdon:: income ttX for- the year 
A,p,,_.,,f,r. 
- lnta"Ctt on lease laabJuxs 

• lntcrc1t expenses on cannoru 
• Interest on income rax refund 
• lntc:rcst incom~ on fixed depoms 
- Dtprea:mon and arnoninrion expense 
- lncc>n'\t on Em vilu2t10n of finincg} ~sets 

- )l(od1fic1tton profil on de-r~a:,grHcion ofl~ contr1crs 

- Prov1•ion for gr.u;u icy and compensated ~bs.rncc:, 

- Profi1 on uk of tn'f'CltmcntS in mun.cl funds (n,ct) 
- Prons110n for ~,c::e ox refund 
• Corpor.are Cu.anntc<: ch~ 
- Balu,ces Written 8ack 
- Excas proru10n wntten lhc:k 
Opcntu:lg I°" bc.{ore working: aphal cbanget and other adjuttro.ffllS 
Change in operating t Utt$ and liabilities 

lnvcnrones 
·r ....ie 1',,y.!>Jes 
0th« rum:nt assetl 
Other fuunaaJ h,bil,ttes. oth« i,,bil,lies 

Cash. used in opcudng llctivitie1 

lncomt r.ax (p,cijd) / rtfund received, nt:t 

Net ca1h used in operating actividtS 

8 . Ca1b now from i.nvc■dng activitiu: 

Purcluse of property, plant & equ1prncnt 

Pt-octtd, from sl1e of muru.:tl funds. net 

lnTdtmcnt lt\ fixed dcpc>Slts 

Proceeds on mao.mry of fixed depottt> 

Interest tcC;etved an fixed deposit1 

Net CQlh generated from investing activities 

C. Caoh now from financing actmtio: ( Refer Nore: #) 

RepJ.ymcnr of int:tt-corporatc borrowlngs 

Proceeds from inccr--corpor.1te borrowin~ 

ProcCCW from ~ of non converublc debcnwres 
Rb:kmpoon of non co,werrible dtbtnrurcs 

All arnounr in r mi11Jons, unless otl1crwise s~tcd 

31 March 202; 31 M- 2024 

(182.80) 

0.20 
0.00 
0.00 

(O.SO) 

2.20 

(U0) 

(0.10) 
5.90 

(6.90) 
3,60 

11.50 
(0.10) 

(10f8) 
(179.18) 

(922.10) 

69.00 
14.50 

327.,S 

(690.20) 
(2.40) 

(692.60) 

(3.50) 

66.20 

57~00 
0.90 

120.60 

(8,%5.60} 
9,114.60 

750.00 

(7LSO) 

0.10 

(9.10) 

1.20 
(2.50) 

2.00 

(3.30) 

0.00 

(83.10) 

(547.60) 
37.50 

(»-90) 
454.50 

(1?4.60) 
(480) 

(199.4-0) 

(2.60) 

l3210 
(57,00) 

9.30 
81.80 

(594.70) 

l,T:iQOO 

(l,000.00) 
Payment of lease bab1btie) {indus1ve of mtcrcst p.-..d ::unountmg to , 0.10 mdliont (31 ~tarch 2024 • 

{0,10 m,lhon,) (0.60) 

(3Ul0) 

(274.70) 

(o.40) 
(72.30) 

(136.00) 
Other Borrowmg Com 
lnt<rUt pood on loon ..... """"- from omen 
N<t c:,ub ccncrat«I from/ (uM!d in) fin>nci.nJ aclivities 

D . IncrCQSC/(Ilecrcasc) in cash a nd cash cquivaluit1, net (A+ B+C) 

E. C..h ond cuh "ll"'-.J•n" ac th< bqpnning of w >= 
F. Cash and c:uh equiw lr:nts at themd or the year (0+£) 

G. Re.conciliation of cut h :and eish equivalents a1 pet cash flow n:ue.me,11 

Ca1h and ca.sh equivalente i.ncludu 

Cash on hand 

Balmceswull Kh«luled banks 
- ln current -accounts 

The .lccompY1ytng no1c11 fonn an 1111egr.il p:lr1" of the financial stl1cmenrs. 

This is chc Stattm<nc of csb flows ttfetffli ro ,n our rt"pOrt of e'l"e:n d:ice. 

Place: Delht 
Dan:: 29 ~Uy 2025 

VO\N- '2..55\J 6~8tM I PA-Ms81 I 

592.70 

20.70 
9.70 

30.4-0 

0.10 

30.30 
30.40 

for and on behalf of lhe Bo:ird ofDi1ec1ora 

[OIX 1061~17) 

,k~~ 
Camp,ny Secr<tary 

Amit R shan Bhagat 
Ou-ectot 

[DIN: 10l63TI6) 

(53.40) 

(171.00) 

180.70 
9.70 

0.10 

9.60 
9.70 



TAPIR CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED 

Statement of Changes in Equity as at 31 March 2025 

(A) Eqnitv share canital* All amount .it1 f millions unless othcrwiSe stated 
' 

Particulars Opening balance as at Issue of equity share Balance as at Issue of equ;ty share Balance as at 
01 April 2023 capital during the year 31 March 2024 capital during the year 31. March 2025 

I Eauit\' share caoital 0.50 - 0.50 - 0.50 

(B) Other eq u:itv 

Particulars Reserves and surplus Other comprehensive 
income - Re-set"Ve 

Other component of 
equity 

Opening balance as at 01 April 2023 -
Loss for the veru: -
Other co mo.rehensive income 

Corpo,rate i,uarantee given bv holding company -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 -
Loss for the vea, -
Other comnrchensive iocome 

Coroorate = tee oiven by holdin11: comoanv ?8.10 
Balance as at 31 March 2025 28.10 
*Ri:jir N ole - 14 far dttaiLr 

The accompanying notes form an integral pact of the financial state11Jents 

This is the statement of changes in equity referred co in our report of even date. 

For Raj Girikshit & Associates 

Place: Delhi 
Date: 29 May 2025 

IJOttJ- '2.551&64gBM\ Pf\MS8 \ \ 

Retained earnings 
Reo1easurement of 

defined benefit plans 

(2,045.50) -
m.so' 

- (0.50) 
-

(2,117.00) (0.50) 
(182.8()) -

- 3.60 
- -

(2,299.80) 3.10 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

~ s-, 
Whole-ti.ine director 
[DIN: 106194171 

Yatharth 
Company Secretary 

T otal 

(2,045.50) 

(71.50) 
(0.50) 

-
(2,117.50) 

(182.80' 
3.60 

28.10 
(2,268.60) 

Direcror 
[DIN: 10163776) 



TAPIR CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED 
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 
31 March 2025 

1. Nature of principal activities 
Tapir Constructions Limited ('the Company') having CIN: U70200DL2014PLC267441 was incorporated on 02 
April 2014. The Company is engaged in the development of real estate projects and other related and ancillary 
activities. The Company is domiciled in India and its registered office is situated at Office no 202, 2nd Floor, A-
18, Rama House, rvfiddle Circle, Connaught Place, New Delhi-110001 in the same jurisdiction under Registrar of 
Companies New Delhi. 

2. General information and statement of compliance with Ind AS 
These financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting 
Standards as notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 ('the Act') - read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 (by Ministry of Corporate Affairs ('N!CA')), as amended and other relevant 
provisions of the Act. The Company has uniformly applied the accounting policies during the periods presented. 

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees ('INR' or '~') which is the functional currency of the 
Company and all values are rounded to the nearest millions, except where otherwise indicated. \v'here value is less 
than~ 50,000.00, the same is mentioned as ~ 0.00. 

Entity specific disclosure of material accounting policies where Ind AS permits options is disclosed hereunder. 

The Company has assessed the materiality of the accounting policy information which involves e.xercising 
judgements and considering both qualitative and quantitative factors by taking into account not only the size and 
nature of the item or condition but also the characteristics of the transactions, events or conditions that could 
make the information more likely to impact the decisions of the users of the financial statements. 

Entity's conclusion that an accounting policy is immaterial does not affect the disclosures requirements set out in 
the accounting standards. 

Accounting Policies have been consistently applied e..'s:cept where a newly-issued Accounting Standard is initially 
adopted or a revision to an existing Accounting Standard requires a change in the Accounting Policy hitherto 
adopted. 

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 were authorized and approved for issue by the Board 
of Directors on 29 May 2025. The revision to financial statements is permitted by Board of Directors after 
obtaining necessary approvals or at the instance of regulatory authorities as per provisions of Companies Act, 
2013. 

3. Recent accounting pronouncement 
lvfinistry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards o;t; amendments to the existing standards under 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. During the year ended 31 March 
2025, MCA notified new accounting standard Ind AS 117- Insurance Contracts, which has no impact on the 
company financial statements. Further the MCA has made certain amendments to Ind AS 116- Leases, in 
particularly related to sale and lease back transactions, which has an applicability from 01 April 2024, and has no 
significant impact on financial statements. 

On 07 May 2025, MCA notifies the amendments to Ind AS 21 - Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates. 
These amendments aim to provide clearer guicLmce on assessing currency exchangeability and estimating 
exchange rates when currencies are not readily e..xchangeable. The amendments are effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 April 2025. The Company is currently assessing tlie probable impact of these amendments 
on its financial statements. 

4. Basis of preparation 
The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in India. Further, the financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except 
for certain financial assets and financial liabilities and share based payments which are measure at fair values as 



TAPIR CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED 
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 
31 March 2025 

explained in relevant accounting policies. Fair valuations related to financial assets and financial liabilities are 
categorised into level 1, level 2 and level 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements 
are observable. 

5. Summary of material accounting policies 

The financial statements have been prepared using the significant accounting policies and measurement bases 
summarised below. These were used throughout all periods presented in the financial statements. 

5.1 Current versus non-current classification 

For the putpose of Current/ Non-Current classification, the Company has reckoned its normal operating cycle as 
twelve months based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets or inventories for 
processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. 

5.2 Property, plant and equipment (PPE) 

&cognition and initial meaSttrement 
Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price, 
borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its workiog 
condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. 
Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recoguised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only 
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company. All other 
repair and maintenance costs are recognised in statement of profit and loss as incurred. 

Subsequent measurement (depreciation and useful h"vc.r) 
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on the straight-line method, computed on the basis of 
useful lives (as set out below) prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. 

Asset class Useful life 

Building - temoorary structure 1 vear 

Plant and machinerv 12 vears 
Office equioment 5 vears 
Computers 3 vears 
Furniture and fLxtures 10 veat s 

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of are reviewed at the end of each financial year. 
De-,-ecognition 

An item of property, plant and equipment initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset 
( calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the cattying amount of the asset) is recognised 
in statement of profit and loss when the asset is de-recognised 

5.3 Intangible assets 
&cognition and initial meast1rcment 

Intangible assets (software's) are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing 
cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for 
the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. 

Sitbsequent mea.rurcment (amortisation) 
The cost of capitalized software is amortized over a period in the four years from the date of its acquisition. 
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De-recognition 
Intangible assets are de-recognised upon disposal or when no further economic benefits are expected from its use 
or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net 
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognised in the statement of profit and loss, when the 
asset is de-recognised. 

5.4 Financial instruments 

Financial assets 

Recognition and initial meamrement 
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value and transaction cost that is attributable to the acquisition of 
the financial asset is also adjusted. 

Subsequent measurement 

Debt instnunents at amortised cost - A 'debt instmment' is measured at the amortised cost if both the 
following conditions are met 

• The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash 
flows; and 

• Contractual te.rms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal 
and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest rate (EIR) method. 

De-recognition of financial assets 
A financial asset is prim.,'ltily de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or 
the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset. 

Financial liabilities 

Recognition and initial mea.sttrement 
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and transaction cost that is attributable to the acquisition 
of the financial liabilities is also adjusted. 

Subsequent measurement -Amortised cost 
Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method. 

Initial and subsequent recognition and measurement-fair value 
A financial liability is classified as fair value through profit and loss ('FVTPL ') if it is designated as such upon 
initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gain/ losses, including any 
interest expense are recognised in statement of profit and loss. 

De-recognition of financial liabilities 
A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation unde.r the liability is discharged or cancelled or e.,_pires. 
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or 
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an e.xchauge or modification. is treated as the de­
recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying 
amounts is recognised in tl1e statement of profit and loss. 
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Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a 
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amotmts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, 
to realise the assets and settle the liabilities sinmltaneously. 

5.5 Impairment of financial assets 

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and 
recognition of impairment loss for financial assets. The Company factors historical trends and forward looking 
infonnation :to assess expected credit losses associated with its assets and impairment methodology applied 
depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. 

Trade receivables 

In respect of trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach of Ind AS 109, which requires 
measurement of loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Lifetime e,'{pected credit 
losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial 
instrument. 

Other financial assets 

In respect of its other financial assets, the Company assesses if the credit risk on those financial assets has 
increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial 
recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month e,'{pected credit losses, 
else at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses. The Company assumes that the· credit risk on a 
financial asset has not increased significantly since initial recognition, if the financial asset is determined to have 
low credit risk at the balance sheet date. 

5.6 Impairment of non-financial assets 

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, based 
on internal or external factors. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset or tl1e cash 
generating tmit is estimated. If such recoverable amount of the asset or cash generating unit to which the asset 
belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction 
is treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. If, at the reporting date there 
is an indication that a previously assessed itnpainnent loss no longer exists, tl1e recoverable amount is reassessed 
and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount. Impairment losses previously recognised are accordingly 
reversed in the statement of profit and loss. 

5. 7 Employee benefits 

Defined contrib11tion plan 
The Company's contribution to provident fund is charged to the statement of profit and loss or i11ventorized as a 
part of real estate properties under development, as the case may be. The Company's contributions towards 
provident fund are deposited with the regional provident fund commissioner under a defined contribution plan. 

Defined benefit plan 
The Company has unfunded gratuity as defined benefit plan where the amount that an employee will receive on 
retirement is defined by reference to the employee's length of service and final salary. The liability recognised in 
the balance sheet for defined benefit plans as the present value of the defined benefit obligation (DBO) at the 
reporting dace. Management estimates the DBO annually with the assistance of independent actuaries. 

Current service cost is computed using actuarial assumptions and net interest using discount rate determined at 
the start of the annual reporting period. However, if an entity re-measures the net defined benefit liability (asset), 

it determines current service cost and net inter -----~--_ r of the annual reporting period after the plan 
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amendment, curtailment or settlement using the actuarial assumptions used to re-measure the net defined benefit 
liability (asset). Actuarial gains/ losses resulting from re-measurements of the liability are included in other 
comprehensive income. 

Other long-term employee benefits 
The Company also provides benefit of compensated absences to its employees which are in the nature of long -
term employee benefit plan. Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due and expected to be 
availed more than one year after the balance sheet date is estimated on the basis of an actuarial valuation 
performed by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method as on the reporting date. Actuarial 
gains and losses arising from e...-c:perience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recorded in the 
statement of profit and loss in the year in which such gains or losses arise. 

Short-term employee benefils 
Short-term employee benefits comprise of employee costs such as salaries, bonus etc. is recognized on the basis 
of the amount paid or payable for the period during which setvices are rendered by the employee. 

5.8 Inventories 

Land other than that transferred to real estate properties under development is valued at lower of cost or net 
realizable value. 

Real estate properties (developed and under development) includes cost of land under development, internal and 
external development costs, construction costs, and development/ construction materials, borrowing costs and 
related overhead costs and is valued at lower of cost or net realizable value. 

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of 
completion and estimated costs of necessary to make the sale. 

5. 9 Revenue recognition 

Revenue is recognised when control is transferred and is accounted net of rebate and taxes. The Company applies 
the revenue recognition criteria to each nature of the revenue transaction as set out below. 

&venue from sale of properties 
Revenue from sale of properties is recognized when the performance obligations are essentially complete and 
credit risks have been significantly eliminated. The performance obligations are considered to be complete when 
control over the property has been transferred to the buyer i.e. offer for possession (possession request letter) of 
properties have been issued to the customers and substantial sales consideration is received from the customers. 

The Company considers the terms of the contract and its customary business practices to determine the 
transaction price. The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company e.2..--pects co be 
entitled in exchange for transferring property to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third 
parties (for example, indirect ta..'<cs). The consideration promised in a contract with a customer may include fixed 
consideration, variable consideration (if reversal is less likely in future), or both. 

For each performance obligation identified, the Company determines at contract inception whether it satisfies the 
performance obligation over time or satisfies the performance obligation at a point in time. If an entity docs not 
satisfy a performance obligation over time, the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time. A receivable 
is recognised by the Company when the control is transfeo:ed as this is the case of point in time recognition 
where consideration is unconditional because only the passage of time is required. 

\Vhen either party to a contract has performed, an entity shall present the contract in the balance sheet as a 
contract asset or a contract liability, depending on the relationship between the entity's performance and the 
customer's payment. 
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The costs estimates are reviewed periodically and effect of any change in such estimate is recognized in the period 
such changes are determined. However, when the total estimated cost exceeds total expected revenues from the 
contracts, the loss is recognized immediately. 

5.10 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets 

Provisions are recognised only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a reliable 
estimate of the amount of obligation can be made at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each 
reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Provis.ions are discounted to their present values, 
where the time value of money is material. 

Contingent liability is disclosed for: 

• Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the 
Company or 

• Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be 
required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made. 

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed. However, when realization of income is virtually certain, 
related asset is recognised 

5.11 Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty 

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the related 
disclosures. 

Significant management judgements 

Recognition of deferred tax assets - The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an 
assessment of the probability of the Company's future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be 
utilized. 

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets - The evaluation of applicability of indicators of 
impairment of assets requires assessment of several e,'Cternal and internal factors which could result in 
deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets. 

Recoverability of advances/ receivables - At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates observed 
over expected life, the management assesses the expected credit losses on outstanding receivables and advances. 

Provisions - At each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal aspects, the 
Company assesses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding contingent liabilities. However, the 
actual future outcome may be different from this judgement. 

Sign[ficant estimates 

Revenue and inventories - The estimates around total budgeted cost i.e. outcomes of underlying construction 
and service contracts, which further require assessments and judgements to be made on changes in work scopes, 
claims and other payments to the e:x."tent they are probable and they are capable of being reliably measured. For 
the purpose of making estimates for claims, the Company used the available contractual and historical 
information. The estimates of the saleable area are also reviewed periodically and effect of any changes in such 
estimates is recognised in the period such changes are determined. 
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Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets - Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of 
depreciable/ amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the e,~ected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in 
these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utilisation of assets. 

Defined benefit obligation (DBO) - Management's estimate of the DBO is based on a number of underlying 
assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary increases. 
Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual defined benefit 
expenses. 

Fait value measurements - Management applies valuation techniques to detennine the fair value of financial 
instruments (where active market quotes are not available) and non-financial assets. This involves developing 
estimates and assumptions consistent with how market participants would price the instrument. Management uses 
the best information available. Estimated fair values may vary from the actual prices that would be achieved in an 
arm's length transaction at the reporting date. 

(Thir space has been i11te11tio11al!J kft blank) 
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All amount in (' millions, unless oc:her,visc stated 

Note - 6A 

Proper!2:• plant and e~uipment 
Particulars Office Computers Furniture Right of - Building Plant& Total 

equipment and fixtures use-assetS# Machin ery 

Gross carrying amount 
At 01 April 2023 0.50 0.50 1.20 1.30 3.50 
Addidons 0.00 1.90 1.60 0.40 0.20 4.10 
Dis~ sals/assets written off 0.20 0.20 
Balance as at 31 March 2024 0.30 2.40 1.20 1.60 0.40 1.50 7.40 

Additio ns 0.70 1.30 1.90 0.50 0.00 4.40 
Diseosals/ assets written off 1.30 l.30 
B<llance as at 31 March 2025 1.00 3.70 1.20 2.20 0.90 I.SO 10.50 

Accumulated depreciation 
At 01 April 2023 0.40 0.10 0.70 0.30 1.50 
Charge for the year O.lO Q.40 0.10 0.40 o.oo 0.10 1.10 

Adiusunenis foe dis~ sals 0.20 0.20 

Balance as at 31 March 2024 0.30 0.50 0.80 0.40 0.00 0.40 2.40 
Charge for the year 0.10 1.10 0.10 0.60 0.20 0.10 2.20 
Adjus1mcnts for <li,Eosals o.oo 0.50 0.50 

Balance as at 31 March 2025 0.40 1.60 0.90 0.50 0.20 0.50 4.10 

Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2024 0.00 1.90 0.40 1.20 0.40 1.10 5.00 

Net car2:_ing amount as at 31 March 2025 0.60 2.10 0.30 1.70 0.70 1.00 6.40 

(i) T here is no restriction on title of the property, plant and equipment. None of the property, plant and equipment has been pledged as securicy. 

(ii) There are no contractual commitmeotS for rhe •<=<iuisition of propeny, plant and eciwpmeot. 
(iii) # Leasbold O ffice workspaces ple<tse also cefer note no.31. 

N ote - 68 
Intangible assets 
Details of d1e Company's property, plant and equipment and reconciliation of their carrying amounts from beginning co end of reporting period is as 

follows: 
Particulars 

Gross carrying amount 
At 01 April 2023 
Additions 
Disposals/assets written off 
Balance ao at 31 March 2024 

Additions 
Dis~ sals/assets v.,Titten off 

Balance as at 31 March 2025 

Accll.lllulated depreciation 
At OJ Apcil 2023 
Charsc for the year 
Adjustments for disposols 

Balance as at 31 Marcb 2024 
Charge for the year 
Adjustments for disposals 

Balance as at 31 March 2025 

Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2024 

Net canyiog amount as at 31 March 2025 

Software 

0.10 

0.10 

0.10 
0.10 

T o tal 

0.10 

0.10 

0.10 
0.10 



TAPIR CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED 

Summa.ry of niatcrfal ,iccoua.tiag policies aod other cxpl2a21ory infonnalioo for the yea, coded 31 March 202S 

N olC:- 7 
A OlhH fiaa..ocial l lfHS - aoo-currcot 

Omec deposau'" 
r ln.Jndal Guxanrei: assec 

•BSE1.mted DetxSerurine>-.,. E,pe,,,eF...s 

6 Olhcr financial unrs - cu.rrc:ot 
Secunq• depo,i, 
F'uunci::d Gu.LW\ttt asset 

No,e - 8 
Noo-c.UJrcnl cue ~fl.Ct$i net 

Adv:uice tncomc tax. mciu<fuig hue deducted at SOtJn:c 

Notc - 9 
Inventories 
Real t:st'.tre: properties - under de.vtlopmert(,. ~t cos, 
l..ruul" 
Cost of rruttri::al.s., corunuction COiC and Othtc ovat.Hd, 
Cllrlitruaion l'l'l:Mt02ls m srock 

Oun11g the 'JC'.11., the c:arop1ny h;u ttwen.toned borrowing:cosc oft 275.10 m,illlons (Previous ye:u- t l.36.30 millions), 

• Abo tefc:r note 15 for mocqi;.agt d,c:m&l. 

Noct - 10 
lovcumuus • c·urrcot 

(i) !Hvcsimeot in ntutu:>.1 lund.s (quorc:d) 
T,wt MF Ovcm,g!u F,ond (OF-DC)• 

24,.265..577 (p=;,,.,. ,_.,. 17,59H77} ""'u,KAY: ' 1203.6806 (p«,;ow ,a,, ~11336423) pen,ni~ 
Tnm MF l,qu,d Fund (U'-DG) 
i:-,a (p=ic,u, year, Sl,10:!.4'2) """'•NAY:~~ r=: f 1170.5838) p«umrl 
fomMF Llquid fTund (LF-DG) 
fN;I (p.-evK>Us ym: ◄,328.636) un.i<>, NAY Nd (pn:viou, f"l' ~ I 170.58Jll) pe< un;~ 

All .imoum in r miIJJons, u.nlcu 01herwl~ stated ~- ~-
31 Mvc:b 202:S 31 M.uc:h 20U 

0.40 0.20 
MO 
7.00 0.20 

050 0,60 
9.90 

IG.40 0.60 

JJ40 3LOO 
JJ,40 31.00 

2,503.20 2,503.20 
3,48260 2,290.00 

!>1.60 19.80 
6 040.40 4,813.00 

:?9.JO 19.90 

6220 

5.10 

2?.J0 87.211 

•Oflhe,oo,,:Jn,....,,..,..;,,.,....,,.. fund.........,.,t~'O<lh {29.30malbons(24,26:i.577 Un.,,),(31 Mud,2ll2A t 19.90°"""""(17,5?<.577 t'n-,)).,.pl«lged0<l,on-

Notc: • ll 
Cash :u1d tub cquivalcocs 
C.,henh.nd 
8abnceswi.hblntJ 

Jncu.t:mlC~IJ: 

Notc - 12 
O tbc.r b111k bal.&.c« 
9,nkc!q,ooi ... 
Wia:h nun.u:ity of mcxt th1n tlu-cc ~thl and up to N-'Ch-e t'N)nth$ 

With maturity or more th-;u, r.vch-c momh.s 

La.,;: :;,.Jon-current blnk b:abnces ui (I.Xtd &posit-~tt 
lnrue:s-1 -~ fWI t-Jc d.:po•u• 

2.50 

0.10 

JO.JO 
30.40 

:?.50 
000 
2.50 

59.50 

59..50 

.. Fixed deporn (c,:cluding accrued intettSt) with lxlnkt of ~2.50 mitholl.$ (31 .!Yfa.rch 2024: '2.50 millions) 'MC pledged fo, the (>\ltposc of 8:lnk Gli.tr,mt« inued in favour of M.ih.uashtta Pollution 
Coott0l lloatd. 

No£C - U 
Other eurrenc UU:B 

(Uosccu1td, con&idcrcd good, uuk:H ocbc:rwiu ll:Hed) 
MotnHZfflon J(l1/fl.nCt$ 

Ad.11:lfla to m.terW / kf'Vicc l)O)\'Kkr1 

p,cparc1,_ 
6lhnces WJtb ltlf\llOIT nithontwct 

Leu: Provi.sion foe 1ctvioe: 1:,1,:ii: t(fund'" 

0 1hw 

3.70 
{).60) 

l.90 
4$.30 

110 
l.60 

0.10 
0.10 

50.50 

010 

9.60 
9.10 

59.50 
0.,0 

59.90 

5.50 
58.20 

1.00 

3.60 
0.10 

68.◄0 

.. 1htte 1:5 -a ltt\'ic:.c r:u: refund o( t J60 milhon$ teet1nb&e from 11:arufOC'Y autboriuo, "'·hich was '.KCrucd on ,evcaal of dcmllnd on c.inodlaoon of \WO in earllCf yt:aa.. The ~ kas filed z 
woaoon roe• ttrund with >t>NICC)' ,r,ul,o,;,;.,, but tht <>m< is ~ O> be <=iT<d. D.n,,g rhe rumnt fonancl,l -• u • maller or prudence. lhc """1>'1'!' ha rakcn P""'~""' og>wt rhis -• 



TAPfR CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED 

Summary of material accouoli.n: polidc.1 aod ocher txpb.nalO,y infornudon for the yu.r ended 31 Ma.rcb 202.S 

Note• l4 
£<tuity share caplt1I 
Authorised 

F.qu11)' shat< cap;,.J of fac,e ,-~ue of ~ 10 each 

U IH ued , i ubsctlbed ,aod folly p:aid up 
llqui~• shate apit~ of face "'1ue of, IO each fully prud up 

Number 
50,(100 

SO 000 

50.000 

SO 000 

m Rec:oncilCuion or numbe:r 2.11d 111mouo.t of equity sb11,c, ouumndi41 1111 the ~ ;in.a.in& ud • t lhc cad of' lhc year 
8 quil)• sba.rn 

Ba.l:.ince .a, t.he beginning o( the ytaJ 50,000 
Md- Issued dunng the yea, 
l.nsc Redeetn<dckuu,glhe ye>c 
Babnc:;c :at thii: ud of the yn.r 

iv Rir:his, prdcrcuce• oind restriclioo, ~tCIChcd to equity 11:h:.arcs: 

50000 

All amount in r miJJJons, un/e,.!J orhcrwis~ stated 
M ~ M m 

31 Ma.r<-h 2025 J1 Match 2024 

Alnount N um..Mr Amount 

0.50 50,000 o.50 

0.50 S0,000 o.so 

0.50 50,000 0,50 

0.SO S0,000 0.50 

0.50 50,000 0.50 

o.so 50.000 0.50 

'J'he holders of cquhy :ihares ace c:nadcd ro receive d1vidc::nds as declared from nme ro time, and are en.tided to ont vote pee thare at n-ic-etinp of t:he Company. In che even,. ofliquidmon or the Company. 
the retmining ..,.ts of !he Compony slt,11 he dislribut<d U> !he holdm of "l'"IJ' sh:a,,s III p"'l)OfflOO ., th< numl>et of sham held ., !he 101>1 ""'"IJ' ,iw,es oum>oding u on dw <bte- Al slw-o<""" 
equ>!lywi,t,<tpdmth<~scrs_......_ 

v 50,000 (pn::vu)OI ynr 50,000) cqu,ty shuts of the Compllly is hcld by holding 00mpJ.nY namdy Embu:sy ~·clopmenu Llmiicd (Pomll!t'!y known » Bquinox Indi.- Ocvclopmencs ~ 1ted, and earl.iet' 
lndi.ibulls Roi l!u:ue l..amitro}, 

vi Otnils of sh.ueltoldN holdiug more than 51/. sh.an u pit1J 

N:a.mc of lhe eg•ir,- sh:ud.oldtr 

llmbnsy I:b·dopmc,u, Limit<d (PO<m<tly lolo..-n as Equ1Mx IJ\d"­
Devtlopment1 Um,ttd, and clrl~ lndi.1buJli Re-al Esme l .. im1ted) (including 
nomine.e sh1n::1) 

Nole - IS 
A Borrowio;s aou.-c11rrent 

Sttu.red .k>an1: 

~--= («ftt .... (i) bolow}t:$ 

8 Uotrow iugt • c 11rr~nr 

Onst cure.d /011n,: 

Lo;w ,..i >Cl..,,_ f«><n «b«d poanin' 

(I) Reoov, e :1 ment term, me u ft /' I di,. cuneo marunou ~o Uri ' Clal . (Ir n o n-<:OOVC:rti < ' D(Urt..S: ' ' 1) d u c:: ii... d ' I r. 'bl d I>< 
l>.an,kubti M:awricyd:arc 

N umber of t h:a.ra 
50,000 

2,432.00 
2,-02..00 

?,006.80 
;006.80 

Redeerna.ble non<a:11'!:\"'ettlble debmwm: issued on 18 Jt.nlWJ 2024 for t Door u, dooc t:tnOr of 36 mond-.t ftCO"I the date of alloaneoi 
t7SO milliont off'1et: wluct 1 n'ul1.l()n eKn. Thi, C1.n'IC1 lf\teteSt ~ of of Nffi1 1ubj«t N) Plrlial Pcep:1.ym.cm,s. 
13.50'/o, l{cdccnublt non-<:OnYctnblc debc.11tu~ (Tranche 1() funher Issued 
oo 12 No,•cml)r.r 2024 foe ( 75 rrullions of flee value oft' 1 miUIOJ'I tad, 

Thi$ c.i.."Ties Ult?ttSt oteof ll..5()t-. 

-,, l?!d<nan-,.-d<hen..,..'" 1.-oa die Uholes,le Dobc ~--•of8SE Ll,r_'1r,i 

50,000 

1>6!2.70 
1.682.70 

•.!::!•.811 
1,857.80 

Secu.riry dcails ll M1u ch 2025 llMtrch 20U 
lt in m.illioas) (t io m.illioo.s) 

Refec Note i1 bdow 2,500.00 1,750.00 

S For fut:tnoail yur 2024-25, the :unoun.1 t' ~432.00 mi!lou «pccK"OU !':CDs. o!t 2.500.00 millions. less: lnd.o\1 ldjus.tment or, 68 00 m.illiom and 1:-or t"IIUnCt21 yca.r 2021•24~ the :am()Un~ If 1,632.70 
millions rqncsC1\ t& NCD,; oft' 1.750.00 m.llions le$S lndAt :1dfU$trll(n~ o{ f 67,30 millfOlti, 

(ii) Dcuil of Stcuricy. DOD convertible dt bt"Dturcs 

a) Th«< non-oon,-en,bledcl>ma,«s.,. ...,...i by fia< ""lw,gp.,...,.. dwg,, ooUNOld.n...,""J"md ...,_ .. of lhepwicct& ,~~bllJc>l>pu,f"Dl'<' ofOMof .. l<lloo•.-..Yoompony-

Sq,,ctRc,1 !,,wo l.mt«I 

b) Thcs.e noo•con~rtiblc: dcbcnl\lcu are fwthe.c KOJl'C by dle 001.'J)Ot'ltc: gutn.ntee of Emba.sy Dtvdopmen~ Lul\ited (Fom,crly b10 \\·n u F .. qvino,: lndi:i. Developmtl'IU I .. itrutcd, and Ht:lier lndi:i.bull.s 
Re:il Est.ate 1..inllw<l (Molding Compan)•) (rt/u11011110. 44) 

() Pan'j)IJRI ch:at,Rt on lhe in~ttlt stt\"'ICC t'Uffl'e ~ount(lSRA} m:iintU'led through snvatn'IC'nt 111 Munul Fund. (fTfor MU u 10) 

Noet a 16 
A l&.tik liabitidcs a O()ft•C1,urtDI 

le,sebabil1t"1 (rtftrw<1, Jf) 

8 Leue. 1i-abiUtkt • ca.rtt:al 

...,.. Labi,- Inf, - JI) 

1'0 0,80 
1.20 0.80 

0,60 0,50 

0.60 0.50 



TAPIR CONSTRUCTIONS LlM11'ED 

Sa1'111'11.a'Y or ~tcr~l aeirou.otiag policlts and otbcr cxplan.-:uory in!on:naUoo f0t d,e ye-a.r c:odNI Jt ~htc.b 202.i 

AU amount in r mi11ions, unlUI otbuwi~ sutM 

No1c - 17 
A rrovisionJ • 00111-eurTcoc 

Pnwil:10t1 for employee benefits; 
c .. tw<J (nf,r..,, •6J 
Compe,,s=I.- (,r/tr-46) 

8 Pnwi1iona • e 11rrcnt 

Ptovit.on f'orcmpl<.>rte balefitt 
Gnru;,y (+""""6) 

~l<d-. (,r/tr-""J 

No1c • JI 
Tndc payables - currc11t 

Out IO micro and srrtill. tn~riJa• 
.Due: 110 re:l-md ~ 

nu. .. -
R<-Moo><:y 

Tr11de PavabfH 1rcinir Hat JI March 2025 

P~.ttic-ubn 

(,)MSMll 
(,i) Olher <hm MS~ 
(uQ Oi>p,Jtcd due, - MSME 

(;v) DisP<1t<d dU<'l - Other ti"" MSME 

Trade Par.ablu~-iD!': at al )l Marc.b2024 

P:articula,.. 

(,) MSMll 
Qi) O uu,r dun MSM!l 
(w) Oupu1ed due! - MSME 
[,vj D.,puttd due! - Qd..,, ,hon MSME 

Noc du« 

9<.10 

Not du" 

-1$, 10 

A .. , 
,U MOJrc.b 2025 

6.20 
<.30 

10.50 

0.10 
0.10 
0.20 

l i.20 
HO 

90.80 
70.10 

182.50 

O1nst1odioi for the ycu ended Jl M:iirch 2025 

Lus t.b:aa L ycu I yu.. to 2 years 2 JUJ1 CO 3 yr.us More du.a 3 yurt 

17.20 
65,,1() 5.80 

Outst.udint: for the vnr coded ll M•rch 2024 
U.u thaa lycat 1 YCU to'2 fC.IU'l 2 vc-:1n to 3 yca.rf More than 3 yea I'll 

10.50 
,!().JO 14.60 

-

.. Di d re nd 1h i\6 Sm 11 and M d Emeru 'tu Devd....,.._, Act "006 t'"?,,{SMED Act "'006'") 5 0$\1 u « CI fC(O ' 1 e mm " ' ' - - :u;a( 31 M=h 202S'"'d ll olruch 2024· -
P"(tkubni Jl M1ucb 2025 

" d,c or.nciMI iU'l"IOW\t ~d cht inttfflt due thereon ~ in.ii\,: W\nai co anr suppl,ec a:t at the end of C3ch accounnno: fe'U", 17.2() 

oh< amoun, of""''"" pu! bf oh< bui<r m laT11f of""""" 16, ,long w11h II>, >mown, of !ht p,ym,,,t mo&, ID tho "'PP"' b<Jood <he~ d:q durint; Ni 

"' cach"""""ong""" 
!he omount of'"'""'" due ~,d payable fo, oh< pcnod of de12y m nuk,ng p,ymen, (u-brll h,ve been pa,d but beyond the 1ppouued d,y dunng the ye,,) but isa 

iii) without adding d,e i.r1tc.1t:~t :mccificd Ufldet this. Act: 

;vi the 1Uf1QU0I o f lf\Wtt!lt :U:Cl'\ltd and ccm:unins unp.1.id ~r d,c end of t'.lch K<:0unt.ing year; and Nil 

the amoum oi fu:thet utttffl( ttm:tmU'\g M :and PQr,ibLt e,,,·,en m the succeed~ yean, until 1uch cbte when die Wlt1:mr dun a5, alx:n,-e att ~ lJ p:tid o::> d'ie N;J 

v) .snd auw:rprise. tor lhe.r~ .. -ot~ a, adco.ictiblt: ~C\111: undersccaon ZJ. 

A• •• 
31M:uch 2024 

6.10 
2.00 
8.10 

0.10 
0.10 
0.20 

IMO 
0.00 

~.60 
37.40 

113.S0 

Toal 

17.20 
16530 

l'oul 
10.50 

10300 

31 March 2024 

10.50 
!-"ii 

!-IJ 

Nil 

Na 

The 'lbo\--e cnfoc::nunon tt.pn:bng Micro, ~I 21:d ~icdaum ftlteqxiSC$ has betn ~ en d'.11!! ertfft( Juch ~ m.'"-c bttn IOffibf:.ed on die: b»d o( ml"ocmabon •"-iii~.b&c .,;•uh the~ 

No1c . 19 
Otbu nna1.1cial li:1bilitic-1, cu,reo, 
Exp.an• payabl~ 

lnitctt, -=crued but noi dut NI bomw.inp 
-~-r. .. 
Od1en 

Note -20 

Othct currt.at ti.abilities 

~ IO 'Cl.nllDIJ" 2lilhotirltf 

--frnmcuwome,s 

1.10 
1.40 

IS.JO 
17,80 

uo 
3,813.20 
3,826.80 

0.70 

0.00 
10110 
11.50 

5.50 
3,511.-10 
l,S16.90 



TAPIR CONSTRUCTIONS Lll',UTEO 

Summary or material accounting policies and olher explanorory information for the year ended 31 March 2025 

Nore-21 
Revenue from ope.ra1ions­

Olhct operaong oncome 
lnteccst fwm cuttomcr.s oo overdue t»la.nccs 
SeCV1Ce teceiprs 

S-:-iJe of ~cr-ap 

l...case: income 

Note:-22 
Ol-her income 

Interest income 
Profit oo. 'Sak of invcwnenis (net) 
Income oo lilir ,-.lu>llOO of fuwicial ,nsuurn=s 
lmerest Income on Income Tu Rc::fwid 
~rodification pl'l)6r on dc-reoogo.iti.on of lease contracts 
Aliscclla.o.rous lucomc 
lncaest income on security d eposit 

Nore-23 
Cost of revenue 
Cost incurred duri.ng du~ )'eat: 

(locrea.sc)/ decrease U\ teal estate pro)f:Ct under development 

Opeou,g srock 
Closmg nock 

Note-24 
Employee be.nefitl expense 
Sabries and wages 
Gnruity and leavt enashmeru 
Conttibutioo to provident fund and oilier fund, 
Staff wclf.tre cxpcrucs 

Noie -25 
Finance CO$l S 

I nteus, csprott& on t:u:iltion 

Joterest on k:nM: liabi.hties 
Corporate Cui\a.ntec ch..ugcs 

Nofe •26 

Other cxpense-t 
Achrcrtisement cxpc1\ses 

8:'lnk ch.ugca 

Auditoc's ttmW1tt.1tic>n - ,s oud1tor (rrjtr ..,, (i) bdw) 

Commuruarion cxpcns<1 
Books and pcnodicah 
Lcg,1 and prof.,,.,onal chorges 
lhtei. a.nd tt.xes 

Repairs 1Ild ncaiJ&tcnancc 
Pbn, =d .,.cbn><ty 
\ 'cluck, 

Others 
8rokeogc and marketing expenses 
Subscription fees 
T rave.ling 2.00, co1weyai1.ce ~a 

M,scelb.m:ous upm,es 
Printing 2nd statiofltry apcruc, 
Rent expenses 
Cu.stoma .i:accutivc :,.nd other cba1·gcs 
So(rwate CXJ.)CnJCI 

Business support expenses 

All amount ln r millions, unlc11 ot.bcrnise statrd 
For the Ye-nr Ended For che Year Ended 

31 March 2025 

0.30 
2.30 

2.60 

0.50 
6.90 
1.50 
o.oo 
0.IO 

11.60 
0.10 

20.70 

1,227.40 

4,813.00 

{6.040.-10) 

10().30 

650 
1.50 

108.30 

0.00 
0.20 

I I.SO 
U.70 

'15.10 
0.20 

0.60 
0.30 
0.00 

18.60 

4.20 

1.00 

0.10 
20.20 

o.oo 
2.50 
0.-IO 
0.00 

0.00 

12.80 

0.00 

7.90 
83.90 

31 March 2024 

0.50 
7.40 

0.00 
7.90 

9.10 
2.(,0 

3.30 
0.00 

1.90 
0.00 

16.90 

688.90 

4,124.10 
{4,813.!!Ql 

,t.70 
2.00 
1.10 
0.60 

55.40 

0.10 

0.10 

0.10 
0.00 
3.00 
0.10 
o.oo 

1 1.00 

4.20 

0.00 
o.30 
o.oo 
5.40 
0.00 
0.30 
0.30 

o.oo 
14.90 
39.60 



TAPIR CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED 

Summary of material accounting policies and other explnna1ory infonna1ion for the yeo.r ended 31 Murch 2025 

(i) Details or Auditor's remuneration 

Audi1or11 remuneration 
Audit foe 

Note - 27 
Income tax 

All M.tnounr in ~ mUllons, unle-6# otherwise smccd 
Por the Year Ended For 1he Year Ended 

31March20?5 31 March 2024 

0.(,0 3.00 
0.60 3.00 

Since lhe company h>• ,ncutred loss <lunng th, 6naoaal r<1" 20U.25 and 20"..3-2~ hence theft: is ,io we liability u ptt p,o,-;,;.,,,. of Income tu act,1961 ,tho 
c.a.kuboon of cffecti~-e tu n.ac is not rc.~-am and hence not given , 

Deferred tax asset i, tecognlse<l ro the extem that it is probable d1:1L future tu:able profits will be avl'!ibblc again.st which the ded,1ctible temporuy difference:, 
and tu los, c.eq• focw:t.rd can be utih,od. The u=b,ocbcd bwine,, losses and depreciation amount to , 926.50 millions on wrucb no dcfetttd Ill u,ctJ is 
cccoglW<d. 

Tho company h>s u,...bsod,od bu,incs, Jos,cs •mounting 10,926.50 milbon, (31 March 2024: rns.02 mill10n•) tlut = .,~blo fo, offilcuing foe a mnimum 
p~aoo or eight ycan from Ule incu.rrencc of loss. 11H:: company hu no, created dcfcn•cd r.ax asscu o n these unab!IO(bed lossc::s considering uncert~.imy 
involved around foture bwinc:ss income. 

Notc•28 
Earnings per share (EPS) 

The Comp,ny's Earning, ptt Shue C'EPS'') ;, dctccmincd b..cd on the uc, pcofit auribuablo ro the ,barehokl=- B:u;c oanungs per share,. computed using 
the "-c,ghtcd ,,.cage number of .i.a~ oursnndwg during tho yea,. Dilu1cd C20UOgs per share i, computed using the "'oglncd •"""&" nttmbtt of common 
and dduti\'e common ~quh,-alent sbuei ouutmding dunng the year indudtng s:hare options, except wbttc the res uh. ,., .. ould be anti-dilutive. 
TI1e following reflects the itlcomc -and 1hare d:m1 used 111 the basic and dilut.ed EPS compnmtions: 

Profit/(loss) attributable to cquit:y holden for basic <:unings 
Profit/(lon) .uuibut2blc 10 equity holder, adju,tcd (or the effect of dilution 

Wc,gl11ed avecagc nwnber of Equity shares foe ba,jc / diluted EPS• 

(182.M>) 
(182.80) 

50,000 

(11.50) 
(11.50) 

50,000 

*No tr:insaction is tbae wluch have. impacted the c:alcul:uK>n of weighted avenge m.unbe.l" of !bates. No o ther ttan.sac:ti.on itwoh,"'lllg Equaty 1h2res 0t potential 
l!.qUlt)' 1h>ccs i, diett between cbe ttpOrtmg date and du: dat< of aulhoru2iion of these 6nanci.l "2temen1s. 

Eamiogs: per equity shnre 
(l)Jlas,c:(t) 

(2) Ddutcd ~ 

(3,654.38) 
(3,6>1.38) 

(1 ,430.52) 
(1,430.S2) 



TAPIR CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED 

S,unmary of material accounting policies and other explanatory infonnation for the year ended 31 March 2025 

All amount in f' miDions, unless otherwise s tated 

Note-29 
A) Financial Instruments by category 

For amortised cost instruments carrying value represents the best estimate o( fair value 
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 

FVIPL FVOCI Amortised cost FVTPL FVOCI Amortised cost 
(See note 1 (See note 2 (See note 1 (See note 2 

below) below) below) below) 

Financial :isse,s 

Investments 
Mutual funds 29.30 - - 87.20 - -

Cash and cash equivalents - - 30.40 - - 9.70 
Other bank balances - - 2.50 - - 59.90 
Other financial assets - - 17.40 - - 0.81) 
Total financial assets 29.30 - 50.30 87.20 - 70.40 

Notes 
1. These financial asseis are mandatorily measured at fair value through profit and loss. 
2. These financial assets represent investments in cqitity instruments designated as such upon initial recognition. 

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 

FVTPL FVOCI Amortised cost FVTPL FVOCl Amortised cost 

Financial liabilities 
Borrowings (inc.luding accrued 
interest) - - .. ,.39.90 - - 3,541.20 

Trade pa),ables - - 182.50 - 113.50 

Lease foibititics - - I.BO - - 1.30 

Other financial liabilities - - 16.70 - - 10.80 

Total financial liabilities - - 4,640.90 - - 3,666.80 

(fhis spaa has bttn 111/,nfw11af!y "fl blank) 



TAPtR CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED 
Summary of material accounting policies and other e,cplanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2025 

A.11 :.unount /J1 r milJjons, unless orhcrwi'se stated 

B) Fair value mC11surements 
(i) Fair value hierarchy 

Fim.nc12J assets o.nd fuuncial liab.l;ties measured ot f>ir vnlue m the fu».nc;,.1 se1tements arc grouped imo three Levels of a fuir ,':lluc hierarchy. The three Levels are defined based on the observ:,b;1;1y of 
sig,,ific;int inputs to the measurement, as follows: 

Level l: quoted prices (unadjusted) m active markets for financial ;nstrumentS. 

Leve.I 2: inputs Olhcr dun quoted prices included "'thm Le--cl 1 th>t arc obsernble for the asset o r labil;<y, either directly or ind.itectly 
Level 3: unob=,.blc input$ fo< the asset or liability. 

(ii) Financial assets aud financial liabtlitics measured at fair value throueb orofit and loss 
Particulars 
financial assets 
Mutual funds 

31 March 2025 
3'1 Morch 2024 

Total financial assets• 31 March 2025 
T otal 6noncial aMcls • 31 March 2024 

(iii) Valuation process and technique used to determine fair value 
Filumdal amtJ 
Cse of net asset wluc foe muru:tl funds &;, nluation on me basis of the statement received from uwestee party. 
FiMwd4/ liabi5/i,s 

Level 1 

29.30 
87.20 
29.30 
87.20 

~ in millions) 
Level 2 Level 3 To1al 

. . 29.30 

. 8720 

. . 29.30 

. . 87.20 

The &ir value of unquoted compulsor:il)' convert,ble debentures is estimated by discounting futui:c cash_ flows using mtes currently -available for capital on similar terms, credit risk and remaining 
maturities. ln addition to befog sensitive co a reasonably possible change t.n the fotccnst cash flows or the discount rate, the fair value of the: equity Ulstruments is also sensitive to a reason2bly pos1ible 
change in the growth mces. The Vllluarion <equircs management co use unob="llble inputs in the mode~ of which the significant unobser-.-.blc inputs arc d,sclosed in the tables belcnv. l\lanagemen.t 
regul:uly :wcsses • ron~ of reisonably possible :utcr:nati,·es for those sigrufia,u unobsen"lble inputs and detennmcs their impact on the 10121 &ir v:aluc. 

(iv) For amonjsed cost instrument, carrying value Rprescnts the best estimate: or (:;)ir value ~in millions) 

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 
Particulars Level Carrying 

Value 
Fair v~luc Carrying Value Pair value 

Financial assets 

Other fmo.ncial assets Level 3 7.00 7.00 0.20 0.20 

Total financial a-ssets 7.00 7.00 0.20 0.20 

Financial liabilities 
Lease liabaities Lcvel3 1.20 120 . 
Total financial ~abilities 1.20 1.20 . . 

The above disclosures 2re p.ces4::ntcd for n.oo-curccnl financial assets an.d non-cut1•enc financi."ll liabilitie~. Carrying vnlue, of cur.r<.·nt financial ass.ets and cu,·rent financial liabilities (cash and cash 
equivalents, trade rccc;v:,blcs, borrowing,;, lease liabJicy trade par,iblcs and other current financial ~abilities) represents the best esdmate of fa;, volue. 

(fhis J!>flct has lmn intt11tionaf/;· l,jl blank) 



TAPIR CONSTRUCTIONS LThUTEO 

Summary of m11tcrial accounting policies and ocber explanatory infonnatiou for the year ended 31 March 2025 

All a.,nount in ~ .rni11ions., unl~ss otl1erw;t$tJ stated 
Note -30 

Financial risk management 

The Company's activities expose it to market risk, liquid,ry risk and credit risk. The company's board of directors has overall responsibility for 
establishment and oversight of Company's risk management framework. Tius note e:,.-plains ,he sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the 
entity manages rhe risk and related impact in die financial smtcments. 

(A} Credit risk 

Credit risk refeo; to the risk of de&.ult on its obligation by the coume,pany resulting in a financial loss. Maximum exposure to Credit risk primarily comes 
from trade receivables. Credit risk on cash and ca.sh equivalents is limited as we geuernlly invest in deposits with banks and financials institutions wilh high 
credit rating assigned by international and domestic credit ,,.ting agencies. 

Company does not have any uade receh"ables as on reporong date. 

Cr,dil ri,I,. 111a11ag,,,,ent 

The fmaoce function of the Company ass~scs and manages credit risk boscd on ioternal credit rating system. Tnternal credit rating is performed for each 
class of 6nancial instruments with different characteriscics. The Entity classifies itS 6nancial assetS into the following categories based on the o.ssumptions, 
inputS and factors specific to the class of financial assets. 

A: Low credit risk 

B: J\foderate credit risk 

C: High credit risk 

Assets under credit ruk -

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 
Credit rating Particulars 

A Cash and Cash Equivalents 30.40 9.70 

A Ocher bank balances 2.50 59.90 

A Other financial assets 17.40 0.80 
A Investment in Mutual foods 29.30 87.20 

The risk parameters are same for all 6nancial assets for all period presented. The Company considers the probability of default upon initiru recognition of 
asset and whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an on-going basis throughout each reporting period. In general, definition of 
default is determined by considering the business em-ironment in which entity opences and other macro-economic factors. 

Cmiil rule ,:,:po11m 

Provision for e.-.pected credit losses 

The Company provides foe expecn,d credit loss based on Lifetime e,cpected credit loss mechanism for loans. deposits and other investments. 

As per the management assessment, company does not need to provide for c.xpected credit loss on any of the financial asseL 

Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach 
Company does not ha>·e any trade receivables. 

(B) Liquidity nsk 

The company's principal sources of liquidity are cash 1nd cash equi,·alenrs and the cash flow rhar is genen.ted from operations. The company has no 
outsnnding bank boaowings. The company bclien:s that the woclcing capital is sufficient to meet its current rcquiremcnlS. Company also have an option 
10 a.minge funds by taking loans and borrowing from Holding Company. Accordingly no liquidity risk is being perceived. 

Maturities of financial liabilities 

1be 1<1bles below o.nalyse the Company's 6naocial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for all non-derivative 
tinancial liabilities. lbe amounts disclosed in the table arc the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carri,ing 
balances as the impact of discounting is insignificant. 

31 March 2025 Less than 1 Between 1 and Between2 Between3 More tban4 Total 
year 2 years and 3years and 4 years years 

Non-derivatives 
Borrowings (including accrued interest) 2,007.90 2,432.00 4,439.90 
T radc pay:ables 182.50 182.50 
Ocher Financial Liabilities 17.30 1.20 18.50 
Total 2,207.70 2,433.20 4,640.90 



TAPIR CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED 

Snilllllary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2025 

All amouut io r' millions unless otberwise Stilted I 

31 March 2024 Less than 1 Between 1 and Betwee.112 Bctween3 More than 4 Total 
year 2 years and 3 ye<1rs aod 4 years years 

Non-derivatives 
Borrowings 1,858.50 1,682.70 . . . 3,541.ZO 
Trade payables 113.50 . . . . ll3.50 
Other Financial Liabilities 11.4-0 0.80 . . . 12.20 
Total 1,983.40 1,683.50 . . . 3,666.90 

(C) Market risk 
Porcigo exchange risk 
Company does nor ha\"e any foreign currency risks and therefore seositivity analysis has not been shown. 

Interest rate risk 

The Company's fixed rate borrowings are not subject to i1tterest rate .cisk as defined in fnd AS 107, since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash 
flows will fluctuate because of a change in marker interest rates. 

The Company's variable rare borrowing is subject to interest rare. Below is the 0\-erall exposure of the botrowing: (' in roillioos) 

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 

Va.ciablc rate borrowing . . 
fixed rate oouowine 2,432.00 1,682.70 
Tow borrowinl!"s 2,432.00 1,682.70 

Sensitivity 
Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/ lower interest expense Ccoin variable rate borrowings as a result of chaogcs in interest rates. (t in millions) 

Particulars 
Interest races - mcreasc y I o/t 
Interest rares - decrease b 1 "lo 

Price risk 

Company does noc have any price risk 

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 



TAPI.R CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED 

Summary or n:uucrial accounting policic-a and other cx:plamuory information to the financfo.J statements. for the year ended 31 lt-1arch 2.025 

A.lJ an>oun1 lb ~ m.JDions, unless othcrwl.sc stared 
Note -31 

Luse rda.tt".d ditclosurCI as per Ind AS 116 
The Company bas leases (or office building. \~'ith 11\e: ercq,tion o( shon-tccm ~ 2.11d leucs of tow-,'2.luc underlying a!l.5cu. c.ach lease is retlcctcd o n the bal:wcc sheet as III right-of•u§t: asset and 2 kt.Jc 
tiibilit)•. Y:a.nW\e !cue payments which do not depend on ao inde..'C ot a r~ue arc excluded from the il\iti:il rncnurcmtnt of the lctie liabili,y and eight of use assets. The Company dusi6e, its nght-Q(-use 
u sers in a coruistcnl au.nner to its proputy, pbnt and equipment. 

Bach le:a.sc geneo.Ur irnp<KCS 1 ratricoon that, unless there is a conttactual nght for the Compar.y to 111bl~se chc ,asset 10 another party. 1hc nghc,0£-u;c assc1 e:an only be used bJ che Company. Some 
lei.set coota.in 1.0 option to extend the lease for ~ further ccrm.. 1'he Compinr is prohibtfcd f'.rom Sidling oc pledging the underlying lo5Cd u..~ 2 .s S<'.Olrity. For leases ovtr office bui1dmg:, 1nd other 
pttttuSN- the Compa.ny ffiUSt kttp those propcrbCI in 2 good .State of rq,11r -and return the propen:ies in their origin:al condition at the, t<nd of the lei..."-C. f'urtha. the Comp:my d requited co pay 
maimemoce ftts 1n nccocdancc with the lease cootnclS. 

A kase payments no, included in muswcmmt of lca.se li2bi.liry 
The ctpense rtb.ung to payments 1101 included iu the measuremcnl of [he !case liab1lit)· is ts follow,: 

JlMuch 2025 
~ in millions) 

31 M2rch 2024 I 
B Toulc:,,boutflow fotlcas,s fordw,yea, <ndcd 31 Mai:ch 20'..5 1s ~ 0.60 ~hltion, (31 M,reh 20".;I t 0.40 Millioru). 

C ToW apcnse rccognin d during the ye2t 

iu millions) 
31M:uc:b:l025 31 ~1,_rcl, 2024 

0.20 0.10 
recnri0t1 oo c ht of use asset 0.60 0.40 

D Maturi1y of lease lfabili1ies 

1lte ~!e li:&.bilitits 1.tt secured by the ttbtcd underlying a.nets. Future minimum lc:a.se pa)•mcnr& were ns follows: 

(fin millions) 
31 ~b,cb :l02S Miolmum lease p::1.ymeoUJ due 

l..eH than J year 1~2 yea.rt 2-3 y .. ,. More than 3 Total 
l.c:L..~p:tyments 0.70 0.80 0.60 2.10 
Interc5' expense. 0.20 0.10 0.00 - 0.30 
Net prese11t V2lun 0.50 0.70 0.60 1.80 

31 Morch 2024 Minimum lease payment$ doe 
Leu tban 1 year 1-2 ycara 2.3ycan More thau3 To1al 

yeart 

I.cue pormenu 0.60 0.70 0.20 I.SO 
Interest ~cnse 0.10 0.10 0.00 0.20 
Nc1 pr~cnt valuet 0.50 0.60 0.20 1.30 

E lnformation about extcn.sloo :and tcrminacion oprioo1 (31 Mnrch 2025) 
Right of use as.sttil Number of Range of Average Number of Numbtl'Of Number of leases 

lease, remai.ning term rem al n.i.og lease l«tes ""icb i.-,,.;th wi1h ,ennioation 
(in yeon) ccrm extension option purchase option option 

(in yea,o) 

Office ptem.i,cs 1.00 2.00 2.00 1.00 

lnform:ation about cxtt.n.sion a nd c:erm.in:a1ion options(Jl t\fuch 2024) 

Right ofuJc assel5 Numbuof Range of Avcraac Number of Numbc.rof Number of leases 
lease• remaining term rent:a.ining lease le:aacs wi.th le::111cs "'ith with tcrmi.nat.ion 

(in yous) lttm ex:tcn1io.o opt.ion purchase op,ion option 
(fo ycar.s) 

Office premises 1.00 2.00 2.00 1.00 1.00 

F Bifu rc:;1uon o .,,. .. fl I ... e en 0 : ~r lft eut:rc.o an non liab 'liti I th d f the d -cun-cnc (T in million~) 

Particulars 31 ~wc:b :l02S 3.1 March 2024 

1} Current li,,baity (:a.mount due Mthin oru=: yt'U) 0.60 o.so 
b) Kon-cutrt.nt liab1lrtr (amounr due over o ne ve1t\ 1.20 0.80 
Total lease 1.iabilllies 111 lhe end of the ye:ar J.80 1.30 



TAPIR CONSTRUCTIONS IAUTED 
Sumrw.&·ry or m atc:ri:il 11c:cou,uiog policies and 0lber c>epl~IOry io(orm21tioa lo , th,e 1.-aw e.adcd 31 t\-1.an:b 2025 

~-t1111moU1J1 in r-rnillions1 un/~.'18 o,herwi1e sra.11:d 
Noce .12 

Dculls with. rc, ~c:-t to t.hc Du11ml propcr1ies 
No proa,cidlg< bi,-. beffl oni<ia...i o, pe,>dw,g 2S'""' ,t,. Cft<ity under d>e llenam Tra,\Sact,001 (P,oh;b,,.,.,, ) Ao~ 1988 fo, <),e ye.tr ended 31 Mal<h :025 ond 311,btch 202J 

N°" . JJ 
Undi,c.lotcd ioc:ome 
There is nO such lf\COmt which ~ noc been <mdoKd 111 chc: book, of acc:o..mtJ. No •uch lr'lcorr.e 11 &um.'1ldettd or d isdo.scd :a, income during Lhe yeu tndc-d 3 l Mateh 2025 and 3 1 Ml«h 2024 Erl tbl ns 
useumenra unikr r ncome Tax Act, t 961. 

N ote ~34 

Dcoi.kof 

Note • 35 

lulio A.ul)-.is 
The following :.rt :l.D:1lycic2.I rati~ for the yc2., ende(l31 M11.rcb 20l5 ~ad J I M1trcb ZOl,& 

i-.,.,.,__.t,rin d,e,earcnded 31 M>rch2025 and 31 Mm'Ch 2024 
No rrans:m1on durir. the -eat ended. 31 March ~...5 irJd 31 ~btch 202• 
M ~dunn !ht tended 31 March 2025 and 31 J\.t.11:ch 2024 

P-artlC\lbt1 Numer:uor ~oomin.:ator 31 M>reh 2025 31 M•«b 2024 VQri,auce 
c:.-ntluoo au:cen, .\sl(U Curren! Llabilincs 1.02 092 
~bt Service Cover.ige Ratio• Earnings :av;t.ib.ble (or debt sen'ffl Oeb1Sco...,. NA NII 
Debt&prrRaoo Tou!Debu Sh, «holdd, E<1w1y (!.96) (167) 
Rerum on P.quity (llOE)~ Nee l'rofu; Afffr Ta.u:s Av°""' Shooc holdd, E<jui,y NA NA 
Tr.tc~rumovcra.uo$ Re\."tnue Average T~dc Rece1wble NA NA 
T ~ dc P~ytblC?s turnover ratio• ' l>\i~ o( JeC'o'1Ca and 0UW:1" ca:pem,c, :\ve..goTr>dcP1pl)le 5.2'1 ~.97 
~ Capst3I T~e:r R.adoi Revenue \t'ocldt1g Capli--,iJ NA !-IA 
N'1:t profitntio"' .Sctpmfo Rn-rouo NA NA 
R,wm of Cap,w Employed (ll0Ct)$ E:un,ng be(o~ intccei( t.axcs C.p,w Employ«! NA NA 
lnvcnroey rumo\'cr wio$ c.,., of Goods ,old J\\.'W':ll°"' lnvcnt:>n" NA NA 

• ~tio can noc be a!culatrxi due 10 ncgirivt cur.~ Ill ptn10Ut .xi CUIR!:l'llt rcar-
# Rano ctn not be alcularcd due to neg;ttme share holder's equity in p ,-evious tutd current yu.r. 

~ In d1t: ~ es~ ~~ rt1'ffl\lll" 2k>ng ,'Ith lhc eom:spondang cost to WCI is cccogniscd on the point m t1me tn,11 ind hcrM:e, !he u'JCl'C'JSC. and decrc:ase will not be diro:dy a.1«ttiWltd basu 
lnCl'ttk/d~asc tn bu1111.ess, .~1.0g!J, cite cun cnt )·elr tatldC a.re not comparablt: wit:h previous )'e-at 

$ R:ar.ao an not be calcub~ dut ro no ~-mue in the curm\t ,or 21 -..-tll is ., prenou., year . 
.... Ratio cm not be cak ul:ned di.IC t(I, lo,r.ca d ~1ring the cuntnt year as well '1S 11\ previous )·e.i.c 

Following t:atios :ut ooc ippliable m new of~ b(t m1I: ttmCf" nurnttat« oc dmominaror docs not ha-.·c J.f\y v.iue:• 
?-:'et profil r,nio, Trade ttccivab\e, rumov-er w io. Tr.ade. in,·a~e• n.imovci: n.tio, Net CJP1ul tutn0vtr nuo. lm'tncory ru.movtt ClbQ :and Raum of GapW FmplofCd (ROCE) aoo. 

Note . 36 
Wil/u.l Def;auJ1er. 

~o ban\( or tina:i,c:ra.l icmiruoon has declared U'le compirw M "Wafu1 defaulter" durin3 the )'t1.r: ended ll Maa:h 2025 W ll ~l:atda 2024 

Note-37 
04!:uih: ha ru pc-c-1 of Udlwa.lloa or Bomnt.ot.d r.acb -:a.nd abut premium: 

'P•~rticub.Q De&crin'1oo 

Tmnnct1on1 u+icce :ll1 c:nrj ry h~ pcovtded ~y ad~, loan, or investm l\,lncfs ro any Nowch ~ tw men pb<tdil<ing me i=endcd31 March 202Sond 11 ~- 2024 
Olhctp<-'~)o,rnri,y/m,.;,..,nclu&ott~<nn-

t~ -.-here an tnti{J hl,: l'«tl,'UI any fund frorn :any pu,on (1) oc muty/ CC'\titics., No •uch """'''"""' h,s l>l<cn place during dx, y,ar ended 31 M, n:h 2025 and 31 Ma,,:h 2024 
indU<bng fore,191 enh,y. 

Note • 38 

R.t.btion, l1ip with St.tock off Con'lpaoie-,: 

ll49o/o 
NA 

17-02', 
NA 
NA 

6.47o/e 
NA 
NA 
NA 
NA 

No tr21rux1iort h:a:s been m::adt a.·ith ~ compaoy wuckofTundcf sea:aon 2'8offt C.ornparue:$ An, 2()13 or t«ttoo S60orCornp21'\1es Ac,, 1956 during che ye-,.cendcd 31 Macch 2025 IIOO 3 l March 2024. 

Noce •l9 
ReJi8tration of c.hui:c~ or 0 1l•f ... e 1ioo whb Re&i• tnu ofCompaulcl: 
All tpplia~ cases wbtfe ~cnuon of dwge:J Of Rmbcrion tS rK1Utctd wnh Rce;i•car o( ~nid have been done. :Ko regasu'IDOn or satisf~rion 1$ pc:nd1n.g for the y~rmdcd 31 Midi 20"..S and 3 t 
M•tch 2024-

Nort:-40 
Co,nplhoce; with aum~ or b yt:t1 of companin: 
1M ro~ny tui complied w1fh the num~ t ofla)<er1 prtKnbed under du.tse (87) or 1tttion 2 o( the Ac1 it::ad "''ith Comp-w,cs (Re:t,rritoon on numbet of Layers) Rules, 2017 md no byM of con'1p•Hcs hu 
b«n aal,lisbed bq<l,,d m, lim,1 p<c><nbed upe,,I)(),. ,..i o«rion / rul..,during d>e r-endod 31 M>td1 2025and 31 ~hrd, 2014 

NCMC:•41 
Lo:m or 11,dv:iiacca guotcd to rhc promott rs, d.ireCtotl and DfP, 2od the ttbtc.d pa.rein:: 

No 1oon or 3dy~1ccs in ilic n.1n.1~ or loarH -:1.re gnn.t~ co the promo«:n.. diccc{O(S, key m:in:a.gtrul pen.on$ and me rel:!.~ pwia$ (JS dcfU'led UMC:r C".otnpancs ltJ:t. 201.3), t&.lhcc' M:'\'enlly Of~ with any 
other p,,c,on.dudng~ ,-cnd,d 31 ~w<h 20:?S<nl 31 ~-=• dw = 
(a) repa)~ble on demand oc 
(bj '""'1ou1 sp,,:;fy,,,g ""1"""" <>< pc""' of "J")m<nt 

N ott•4l 

Code on So,;j:,,J Sc1;:urhy, 2020: 

The Inch an Piliiament hu appro,itd rhe Code on Soc1::11 ScCUl"lt}', :202() wruth woul<l impact the. c:onttibudocu: by the c:omp.M'IJ rowards Pcn-ndenc Fund 2nd Gn:waty. The: )iinacty of ubout and ~l 

had tele:.ucd dnft mies fot the CoJc. on Social St-cut1ry, 2020 on l3 SO\-cmlu 2020, :and utvifed SUggutJOIU from s~lden which att ul\d« conticlc1~tion by ctn!: Mlnistry. i11e Company- will assest (he 
impact 3nd ,ts C'\'2h.latJOn OMC ~ tvb,ec.t rule& .1tt .nouficd. The C.ornpany will '9\'t -approprt.u c imp.Kt in lu fin:inci:tl sta~ll in abc: period in whicb., ft c.odc becomes ~ff«tm: tnd lhc: rmtl'd natl to 
dctcffl'Ul}C 1h.e. firuoci,J ~t :ace publ~ 



TAPIR CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED 
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial s tatements for 
the year ended 31 March 2025 

All amount in ~ millio11s, unless otherwise stated 

Note-43 
Capital management 
The Company's objectives when managing capital are to: 

• To ensure Company's ability to continue as a going concern, and 
• To provide adequate return to shareholders 

Management assesses the capital requirements in order to maintain an efficient overall financing strncture. The 
Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments co it in the light of changes in economic conditions and 
the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. The Company manages its capital requirements by reviewing its net debt 
position, where net debt is equal to non-current borrowing (including cu.a:enr maturities of non-current borrowings) 
and short-term borrowing net of cash and cash equivalent and other bank balances. 

N ote -44 
Related party transactions 

tRelationship Name of the related parties 
Related Parties exerrisin2 control 
Holding company Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly known as Equinox 

India Developments Limited, and earlier Indiabulls Real Estate 
Limited) 

Other -related partiu Sepset Real Estate Limited 
Fellow Subsidiaries* Airmid Real Estate Limited 

Citra Properties Limited 

Key management personnel* Mr. Sameer Khanna (Whole-time director-till 09 July 2024) 
Mr. Abhishek Rajninath Surve (\Vhole-time director-from 10 July 
2024) 

Other enterprises under the control or significant Embassy Seivices Private Limited (w.e.f. 24 January 2025) 
influence of Key Management Personnel of the Technique Control Facility Management Linlited (w.e.f. 24 January 
holding company and their relatives with whom 2025) 
there were transactions 

* with whom lramactions have been made d11ri,rg the yea,-/ previous year 

(i) Statement of transactions: 

Key management personnel 

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 
Managerial remuneration 
Mr. Sameer Khanna - 8.40 
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Related parties other than key managerial personnel 

Nature of transactions 
Holdinf!' Company Fellow subsidiaries 

31March 25 31March 24 31 March25 31March 24 
Holdine Company: 
Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly known 
as Equinox India D evelopments Limited, and earlier 
lndiabulls Real Estate Limited) 
Loans and advances taken/ (repaid), net (1,826.20) (626.30) - -
Business Support Expenses 14.00 31.80 - -

Fellow Subsidiary Companies: 
Sepset Real Estate Limited - - 70.10 31.60 
IAi.rmid Real Estate Limited - - 1,305.90 -
Citra Properties Limited - - 599.20 -

Coroorate Guarantee given by 
Holdinf! Company: 
Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly known 
as Equinox India Developments Limited, and earlier 2,500.00 1,750.00 - -
Indiabulls Real Estate Limited) 

Other enterprises under the control or s ignificant influence of Key 
Management Personnel of the holding company and their relatives with 31March 25 31March 24 
whom there were transactions 

Site Manae:ement Fee 
Embassy Services Private Limited (w.e.f. 24 Januaxy 2025) 0.50 -

Technique Control Facility Management Limited (w.e.f. 24 January 2025) 2.80 -

(ii) Statement of balances outstanding: 

As at As at 
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 

Hok/inf!' Company: 
Embassy D evelopments Limited (Formerly known as Equinox India 
Developments Limited, and earlier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited) 

Loans and advance taken 
[I'rade Payable 

Fellow Subsidiary Companies: 
Sepset Real Estate Limited 
IAirmid Real Estate Limited 
Citra Properties Limited 

Other enterprises under the control or significant influence of Key 
Management Personnel of the holding company and their relatives with 
whom there were transactions 

Site Mana ement Fee* 
Embassy Services Private Limited (w.e.f. 24 Janu!U)J 

- 1,826.20 
4.40 31.30 

101.70 31.60 

1,305.90 -
599.20 -

31 March 25 31March24 

0.50 
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Technique Control Facility Management Limited (w.e.f. 24 January 2025) 0.30 -

Corporate Guarantee given by 

Holding Company: 

Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly known as Equinox India 
2,500.00 1,750.00 Developments Limited, and earlier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited) 

*Include; balances prior to the date on whzch the enft!J became related par!J. 

Note-45 
Contingent liabilities and commitments 

Contingent liabilities: 

Particulars 
Demand raised in respect of differential interest under VAY.. 

Demand cum Show Cause raised with respect to ITC cla.imed through 
TRAN-1 

Demand issued for SGST credit claimed in Tran-1, appeal pending 
with Appellate Authority 

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 

- -

3.60 3.60 

0.10 0.10 

* The company has received a demand of~0.10 millions from department ofGST, Maharashtra, period covered by 
the order from 01 April 2017 to 30 June 2017 for levy of interest u/ s 30(2) of Maharashtra Value Added Tax, 2002. 

Legal Case: 

There are certain Allottees of "One Indiabulls Thane" Group housing residential project who had filed their 
respective complaints and are pending adjudication before Maharashtra RERA, via, which they majorly alleged their 
grievance with respect to delay to the tnne of~ 8.60 millions. Though, the Company is contesting the same and it is 
most likelihood that nothing is payable by the Company in these litigations. However, if required, the company will 
take the provision in case any adverse outcome is expected. 

Based on the defence taken in these matters and the independent legal advice from the Counsels, the management 
believes that there is a reasonably likelihood that the there is no material liability will devolve on the Comp~y in 
respect of these matters. 

Bank Guarantee 

Guarantee provided by the bank (secured by way of fixed deposits of the Company): , 2.50 .millions (Previous year , 

2.50 millions). 

There are no other contingent liabilities and commitments to be reported as on 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024. 

Note-46 

Employee benefits 

Defined contribution plan 
The Company has made f 1.50 millions (31 March 2024 - f 1.10 millions) contribution in respect of provident fund. 

Defined benefit plan 
The Company has the following defined benefit pla 
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• Gratuity (unfunded) 
• Compensated absences (unfunded) 

Risks associated with plan provisions 

Discount rate risk Reduction in d iscount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the 
liability. 

Mortality risk Actual death and liability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the 
valuation can impact the liabilities. 

Salary risk Actual salary increase will increase the liability. Increase in salary increase rate 
assumption in future valuations will also increase the liability. 

Withdrawal risk Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change 
ofwithdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can impact liabilitv. 

Compensated absences 
The leave obligations cover the Company's liability for earned leaves. The amount of provision of ~ 4.40 millions (31 
March 2024 -~ 2.10 millions) is presented as current, since the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer 
settlement for any of these obligations. However based on past experience, the Company does not C..'--pect all employees 
to take the full amount of accrued leave or req)-U.te payment within the next 12 months, therefore based on the 
independent actuarial report, ouly a certain amount of provision has been presented as current and remaining as non­
current. The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 17 .35 years (31 March 2024: 16.24 years). 

Actuarial (eain)/loss on oblieation: (~ in millions) 
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 

Actuarial (Gain) / loss on arising from change in financial assumptions 0.00 0.00 
Actuarial Loss / (gain) on arising from change in e~-perience adjustment (1.40) (0.20) 

Amount recoenised in the statement of profit and loss is as under: (t in millions) 
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 

Current service cost 4.10 0.70 

Interest cost 0.20 0.10 

Actuarial gain on obligation (1.40) (0.10) 

Expense recognized in the statement of pmfit and loss 2.90 0.70 

Movement in the liability reco2nized in the balance sheet is as under: (~ in millions' 
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 

Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 2.20 1.50 

Current service cost 4.10 0.70 

Interest cost 0.20 0.10 

Actuarial gain on obligation (1.40) (0.10) 

Benefits paid (0.70) -
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 4.40 2.20 

Bifurcation of ro·ected benefit obli arion at the end of the ear in current and non-current (t in millions 
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 

a due within one •ear 0.10 0.10 
b 4.30 2.10 

4.40 2.20 
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For determination of the liability of the Company, the followine actuarial assumptions were used: 
Particulars Compensated absences 

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 
Discount rate 7.15% 7.22% 
Salary escalation rate 5.00% 5.00% 

Mortality table 
Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives 
Mortality (2012 -14) Mortality (2012 -14) 

As the Company does not have any plan assets, the movement of present value of defined benefit obligation and fair 
value of plan assets has not been presented. 

These assumptions were developed by management with the assistance of independent actuarial appraisers. Discount 
factors are determined close to each year-end by reference to government bonds of relevant economic markets and that 
have terms to maturity approximating to the te.tms of the related obligation. Other assumptions are based on 
management's historical experience. 

Maturit\ plan of Defined Benefit Oblii?ation (tin millions' 
Year 31 March 2025 Year 31 March 2024 

a) April 2025 - March 2026 0.10 April 2024 - March 2025 0.10 
b) April 2026 - March 2027 0.10 April 2025 - March 2026 0.00 
c) April 2027 - March 2028 0.10 April 2026 - March 2027 0.00 
d) April 2028 - March 2029 0.10 April 2027 - March 2028 0.00 
e) Aoril 2029 - March 2030 0.30 Aoril 2028 - March 2029 0.20 
f) April 2030 - March 2031 0.10 April 2029 - March 2030 0.20 
!!') April 2031 onwards 3.70 April 2030 onwards 1.70 

Sensitivity analysis for compensated absences liability (~ in millions) 
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 

Impact of the change in discount rate 
Present vaJue of obligation at the end of the year 4.40 2.10 

a) Impact due to increase of 0.50 % (0.30) (0.10) 

b) Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % 0.30 0.10 

Impact of the change in salary increase 
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 4.40 2.10 

a) Impact due to increase of 0.50 % 0.30 0.1 0 

b) Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % (0.30) (0.10) 

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawal are not mate.rial and hence impact of change not calculated. 

Gratuity 
The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who 
are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on 
retirement/termination is the employee's last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary 
multiplied for the number of years of service. Gratuity plan is a non-funded plan. The weighted average duration of the 
defmed benefit obligation is 17.35 years (31 March 2024: 16.24 years) 
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Actuarial loss recognised in other comprehensive income (~ in millions) 

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 
Actuarial gain on arising from change in demographic assumption - -
Actuarial (Gain) / loss on aris.ing from change in financial assumptions 0.10 0.10 
Actuarial loss on arising from change in experience adjustment (3.70) 0.40 

aunt recoeruse ill e statement of profit and loss is as under: Am • d. th ({ in millions 
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 

Current service cost 3.20 1.00 
Interest cost 0.40 0.40 
Expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss 3.60 1.40 

Movement in the liability recoenized in the balance sheet is as under: ({ in millions) 
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 

Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 6.20 5.40 
Past Service Cost 1.70 -
Current service cost 1.60 1.00 
Interest cost 0.40 0.40 

Benefits paid - (1.10) 

Total actuarial (Ga.in) / loss on obligation (3.60) 0.50 

Present value of deftned benefit obligation at the end of the year 6.30 6.20 

Bifurcation of projected benefit obligation at the end of the year in current and non-current 
({ in millions 

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 
a) Current liability (amount due within one vear) 0.10 0.10 
b) Non - current liabilitv (amount due over one vear) 6.20 6.10 

Total projected benefit obligation at the end of the year 6.30 6.20 

For determination of the liability of the Company, the following actuarial assumptions were u sed: 
Particulars Gratuity 

31 March 2025 31 March 7024 

Discount rate 6.99% 7.22% 

Salary escalation rate 5.00% 5.00% 

Mortality table 
Indian Assured Lives Mortality Indian Assured Lives Mortality 

(2012-14) (2012-14) 

As the Company does not have any plan assets, the movement of present value of defined benefit obligation and fair 
value of plan assets has not been presented. 

These assumptions were developed by management with the assistance of .independent actuarial appraisers. Discount 
factors are determined close to each year-end by reference to government bonds of relevant economic markets and that 
have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Other assumptions are based on 
management's historical experience. 
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M atun no e e ene t 1~atton 1tv pla fD fin dB fl Obli tnmi lli ons , 
Year 31 March 2025 Year 31 March 2024 

a) April 2025 - March 2026 0.10 April 2024 - :Match 2025 0.10 
b) April 2026 - Ma.rch 2027 0.10 April 2025 - Ma.rch 2026 0.10 
c) April 2027 - Ma.rch 2028 0.10 April 2026 - March 2027 0.10 
d) April 2028 - March 2029 0.10 April 2027 - March 2028 0.10 
e) April 2029 - March 2030 0.90 April 2028 - March 2029 0.20 
f) April 2030 - March 2031 0.10 April 2029 - March 2030 0.70 
g) April 2031 onwards 4.90 April 2030 onwards 4.90 

Sensitivity analvsis for eratuitv liability (~ in millions 
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 

Impact of the change in discount rate 

Present value of obligation at the end of the year 6.30 6.10 
a) Impact due to increase of 0.50 % (0.30) (0.30) 
b) Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % 0.40 0.30 

Impact of the change in salary increase 

Present value of obligation at the end of the year 6.30 6.10 
a) Impact due to increase of 0.50 % 0.40 0.30 

b) Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % (0.40) (0.30) 
Sensitivities due to monality and withdrawal are not material and hence in1pact of change not calculated. 

Sensitivities as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before 
retirement and life expectancy are not applicable being a lump sum benefit on retirement. 

Since the number of employees in the previous year were insignificant, the disclosures for employee benefits -
compensated absences and gratuity for the previous year were not presented. 

Note-47 
Segmental information 

The Company's primary business segment is reflected based on principal business activities carried on by the Company 
i.e. development of real estate projects which as per Ind AS 108 on 'Segment Reponing' is considered to be the only 
reportable business segment. The Company is operating in India which is considered as a single geographical segment 

Note -48 

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities pursuant to Ind AS 7 - Cash flows 

A The changes in the Company's borro"vings arising from financing activities can be classified as follows: 
in millions 

Particulars 

Net debt as at 01 A ril 2023 
Proceeds from current/ non-cur.rent borrowings (including current 
maturities 
Repayment of current/ non-current bot:rowings (mcluding current 
matutities 

Interest Paid 
Net debt as at 31 March 2024 

Non-current 
borrowings 
(including 

current maturities 
3,404.80 
1,750.00 

(1,594.70) 

19.60 
136.00 
135.30 

3,541.20 

Total 

3,404.80 
1,750.00 

(1,594.70) 

19.60 
136.00 
135.30 

3,541.20 
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Proceeds from current/ non-current borrowings (inclllding current 9,864.60 9,864.60 
maturities) 
Repayment of current/ non-current borrowings (including current 
maturities) 

(8,965.60) (8,965.60) 

Non cash adjllstments -(0.70) (0.70) 
Interest Expense 274.70 274.70 
Interest Paid (273.60) (273.60) 
Net debt as at 31 March 2025 4.439.90 4,439.90 

B. The changes in the Company's lease liabilities arising from financing activities can be classified as follows: 

Particulars 
Lease liabilities as at 1 April 2023 (current and non-current) 
Recognition of lease contracts 
Interest on lease liabilities 
Payment oflease liabilities 
De-recol1:tlition of lease contracts 
Lease liabilities as at 31 March 2024 ( current and non-current) 
Recognition of lease contracts 
Interest on lease liabilities 
Payment of lease liabilities 
De-recosmition of lease contracts 
Lease liabilities as at 31 March 2025 ( current and non-current) 

Note -49 
Audit trail 

~ in millions) 
Amount 

-
1.60 
0.10 

(0.40) 
-

1.30 
1.80 
0.20 

(0.60) 
(0.90) 

1.80 

As per the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notification, proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014, for the financial year commencing 1 April 2023, every company which uses accounting softwares for maintaining 
its books of account, shall use only such accounting softwares which has a feature of recording audit trail of each and 
every transaction, creating an edit log of each change made in the books of account along with the date when such 
changes were made and ensruing that the audit ttail cannot be disabled. The interpretation and guidance on what level 
edit log and audit trail needs to be maintained evolved during the year and continues to evolve. 

The Company has used accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account for the year, which have feanues of 
recording audit ttail (edit log) facility at application level as well as database level and the same have been operated 
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the softwares except one software where audit trial (edit 
log) facility at database level was not available. Recording of audit trail (edit logs) can be disabled using restricted 
privileged rights for direct data changes at database level. Since the company has other necessary controls in place, 
which are operating effectively, this feature will not adversely impact its data and audit log retention directly at database 
level. 

Fruthermore, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention 
except that the audit trail at the database level for the Company has not been preserved in the accollllting software for 
the period from 01 April 2023 to 31 March 2024 as applicable. 

Note-50 
Business Combination of Holding Company 
The Hon'ble National Company Law Appellate Tribunal, New Delhi Bench C'NCLAT"), on 7 January 2025, approved 
the scheme of amalgamation of Nam Estates Private Limited ("NAM'') and E mbassy One Commercial Property 
Developments Private Limited ('EOCPDPL") with Embassy Developments Limited ("EDL") (formerly known as 
Equinox India Developments Limited, and earlier India . Estate Limited) and their respective shareholders and 
creditors ("Scheme") pursuant to sec 230 to 232 o . Act, 2013, and other applicable provisions of the 
Act, read with Companies (Compromises, Atran ~ ~ , tions) Rules, 2016. Pursuant to the NCLAT 
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Order, EDL and NANI have filed the certified true copy of the court order with the respective jurisdictional Registrar 
of Companies 011 24 January 2025, thereby giving effect to the scheme ("Effective Date"). 

Subsequent to the scheme becoming effective, a few of the current NAM shareholders, namely JV Holding Private 
Limited (JVHPL), four individuals, and two other entities (referred to as the "Promoter/Promoter Group''), became 
the largest shareholders of the EDL, the company's holding company. 

Note-51 

Other matters 

a. The Company has not entered into any derivative insuument during the year. The Company does not have any 
foreign currency exposures towards receivables, payables or any other derivative instrument that have not been 
hedged. 

b. In respect of amounts as mentioned under Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013, there were no dues required 
to be credited to the Investor Education and Protection Fund as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024. 

c. In the opinion of the Board of Directors, all current assets and long term loans & advances, appearing in the 
balance sheet as at 31 March 2025, have a value on realization, in the ordinary course of the Company's business, 
at least equal to the amount at which they are stated in the financial statements. In the opinion of tbe board of 
directors, no provision is required to be made against the recoverability of these balances. 

d. The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary company of Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly known as 
Equinox India Developments Limited, and earlier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited) , whether directly or indirectly 
which is having a net worth of~ 101,709.80 rnillions. The Company will get all necessary support financially and 
otherwise from its holding company and thus, the Company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the 
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. 

For Raj Girikshit & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
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